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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Aldennan 
Town of Leonv ille, Louisiana 

We have aud ited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activ ities, the business-type activit ies, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Town of Leonville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, and the related noleS to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Ma"agement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fai r presentat ion of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of inlemal cont rol releva nt to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor 's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express oplOlOns on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America and the standards app licable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Slandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require th at we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material mi sstatement. 

An audit involves perform ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about Ihe amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatemen t of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to th e entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures thnt are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's intemal con trol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of s ignificant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit ev idence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opill;()IIS 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-ty pe activ ities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
infonnation of the Town of Leonville, Louisiana, as of June 30. 2020, and the respective changes in financia l position, and, 
where applicable, cash Oows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting princ iples genera lly accepted in 
the United Slates of America. 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Informarion 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of America require that the budgetary comparison infonnalion 
and pension schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governm ental Accounting Standard s 
Board, who cons iders it to be an esse.ntial part o f financ ial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational , economic, or hi storical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standard s generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consis ted o f inquiries o f management about the methods o f preparing the infonnalion and comparing the i.nfonnation for 
consistency with man agement' s responses to our inquiries , the basic Cinancial statement s, and other knowledge we obtained 
durin g our audit of the basic financ ial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with suffic ient ev idence to express an opinion o r provide l\ny assurance. 

Management has omit1ed management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requ ire to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such mi ss ing infonnation, although 
not a part o f the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic o r 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financillJ statements is not affected by this mi ssing in Connation . 

Other In/anna/ion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fannin g opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise t1le Town 
of Leonv ille, Louisiana 's basic financial s tatem ents. 111e combining and individual non major fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of addit ional ana lysis and are not a req uired part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedu le of compensation, bene fits, and other payments to agency head, as li sted in the table of contents, as required by the 
State of Loui siana, is presented for purposes of additi onal analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and indi vidual l1011major fund financial statements and the schedu le of compensation, benefits, and other 
payments to agency head are the respon sibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements . Such infonnation has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards genera lly accepled in Ihe United Stales of America. In our opinion, the combining and indi vidual no nmajor 
fund financial statements. and the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head are fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statem ents as a who le. 

Other Reporting Required by GOI'efllmcllt Auditillg Standards 

In accordance with Governmen( Audi(ing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4, 2020, on our 
consideration of the Town of Leonville, Louis iana 's internal contTO I over financial reponing and on our tests o f its com pliance 
with certain provis ions of laws, regulations, con tracts, and grant agreements and other maners. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial report ing and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an 
audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Leonvi lle, Louisiana's internal 
control over financial re porting and compliance. 

~~1.;~~j~~: H\cC 
Eunice, Loui siana 
December 4, 2020 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 
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TO\VN Of LBONVILLE, LOU1SLANA 
Stalemenl orNel Position 

June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivale.nts 
Receivables, net 
Unbilled receivables 
Prepaid insurance 
O\he! assets 

T 01.31 curren! assets 

Govemmentai 
AClivities 

$ 3- 7,978 
55.736 

12,669 
984 

105,367 

Busmesil-Type 
Activities 

S 198, lIO 
148,367 
60,500 
43,21G 

4,102 
654,309 

S 

Total 

436,088 
202, I03 

60,500 
55,699 

5,086 
759,676 

l\oncurre:ll assers: 
Restricted asselS: 

Cash and cash equiv41cOls 
Capital assets, net 

Tot;;!1 noncurrent assets 
1,14),63l 
1,741,631 

4J{(825 

11,312,378 
11,741,203 

41 &,825 
I3Jr§4:U09 
13,482,834 

ToUlI asselS 1,$46,998 12,3115,512 14,2·42,510 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred ou(tlmvs related to pensions )6,387 139,472 195,859 

LlABILlT1ES 
Current liabiHtics: 

Auounts and other payables 
Compensated absences 
Cum:nt pOflkm of bonds payable 
CUrrent portio!'; of notes payable 

Total cmren! liabilities 

18.771 

13,77] 

55,254 
15,093 
27,017 
65,528 

162,892 

74,025 
15,093 
27,v17 
65,528 

181,663 

Noncutr<!n1 iiabilities: 
Customers deposits payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Notes payable 
Net pension liability 

Total nonC\UTent liabilities 
223,64l 
223,64 ) 

28,487 
861,924 

4,723,996 
5{)S~8 17 

6,120,224 

28,487 
.861,924 

4,123,996 
729,458 

6,343,865 

Total liabilities 142,412 6,283,116 6,525,528 

DEFERRED fNFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflow~ relalcd to pensions \ 7,282 27,68) 44,965 

NET POStTtON 
InvcSled In capital assets, net drdatcd debt 
ReSlnetoo for debt service 
Unrestricted 

l,741 ,63 j 

(97,940) 

6,532,854 
4J8,825 

(727,494) ..._ 

8,274,485 
418,625 

..___ (825,414} 

To{,d net po;;ilion $ 1,643,691 S 6,124,185 $ 7,&67,876 

Tbe accompanying notes are an integral part of the bas.k flllancial statements, 
.\ 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE. LOUrSIANA 

Statement of Activi ties 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Progm.m Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenues and 

Activities 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safery: 

Police 
Streets 
Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 

0" 
Water 
Sewer 
Interest 

Total bUSiness-type activities 

Total 

Expenses 

S 55 ,322 

2 14, 12 1 
9 1,808 

36 1,251 

71,788 
1,026,796 

267,570 
247,270 

1,6 131424 

$ 1,974,675 

Fees. Ftnes Operating Capital 
and Charges Grants and Grants and 
for Services Contributions Contributions 

S 29,223 $ 

34,027 5,150 
P,323 

34 1°27 34,373 12 ,3 23 

74 ,9 10 
1.532,335 

85.579 

1,692,824 

$ 1,726,851 $ 34,373 $ 12,323 

General revenues: 
Tax es ­

Franchise and chain store taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
[nterest and investment e3m ings 
Nonemployer pension contributions 
Miscellaneous 
Capital contributions 
Transfe~ 

Total general revenues and transfers 
Changes in oet assets 

Net position - June 30, 2019 
Net position - June 30, 2020 

Govemmenta! 

Acti vities 


$ (26,099) 


( 174,944) 
(79,485) 

(280,528) 

(280,528) 

69,407 
30,279 
35,952 

J2 
5,086 

! 1,887 

129,504 
282,147 

1,619 
1,642.072 

$ 1,64) ,69 1 

Chanses in Net Positi on 
Business-Type 

Acti vities 

$ $ 

3,122 
505 ,539 

(18 1,99 1) 
(247,2702 

79 ,400 

79,400 

1,888 
15,245 
26,459 
39,232 

(129,504) 
(46,680) 
32,720 

6.19J,465 
$ 6,224,185 $ 

Total 

(26,099) 

( 174,944) 
(79,485) 

(280,528) 

3, 122 
505 ,539 

(18 1,99 1) 
(247,270) 

79,400 

(20 1, 128) 

69,407 
30.279 
35 ,952 

1,920 
20,)) I 
38.346 
39,232 

23 5,467 
)4,))9 

7,833,537 
7,867,876 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
6 



FUI<D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS) 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOU ISIANA 

Balance Sheet 


Governmental F W1ds 

June 30, 2020 


ASSETS 
Cash 
Rece ivables 

Franchise fees receivable 
Grants receivable 
Intergovernmental receivable 

Prepaid insurance 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIA BILITI ES AND FUND BA LANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabiliti es 

TOlalliabililies 

Fund balances : 
Unassigned 

Tota l fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund ba lance 

General 
Fund 

S 37,978 

! 

10,625 
39,598 
3,m 

12,669 

98' 
105,36 7 

$ 14,598 
4:173 

18,77 1 

86,596 
86.596 

i 105,367 

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE. LourSIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental runds Balance Sheet 


10 the Statement ofNe! Position 

June 30, 2020 


TOlal fund balar;ces for governmental nmds at June }O, 2020 86,596 

Total oel position reported ror gcvemmemaJ aCl.ivities in (he statemenl 
orne! position is ditlerent Vecaus.e: 

Capital assels us.ed in goverrml;;nml activities are no! fmancial 
resources and, therefore, are n01 r<!ported in the funds. Those 
RS:sels consist of 

Lar,d $ 8.912 
Buildings, nel of$ [36,513 accumulaled depreciation 5&,340 
InlTasfnlcture, nel of$360,552 accumulated depreciation 1,645,809 
Equipment &. 0ther, net of$113,434 accumulmed depredation 28,570 ),741,631 

Amounts related to j..'ension recognition are nOl due and payable 
ill the currcn( period and, Iherefore. are 1'101 reported in the fund;;. ._..{184,536) 

Toral net posili0Jl of govenunentaJ actlvides at June 3D, 2020 $ 1.64J,(j'l! 

The accompanying notes are an integnd part of the basic financjal statements, 
9 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Stlllemcnl ofRcvenues, Expe:lciitures, and 


Changes hI FUlld Balances-­

G»vemmental Funds 


fonhe Year £nded Iunc 30, 2{)20 


Revenues: 
Licenses and penni!s 

F:11:x:hise fees 

Floes and forfeits 

intergovernmental 

Miscellaneous 


Total revenues 

expenditures: 

ClHiem -. 

General governrneni 

Public safety: 


PoJice 

SrreelS and dunnage 


Capital oU\:!ay 
Total expenditures 

E\.cess (deficiency} of 
revenues over 
expend itutes 

Other financinJ: sources (uses): 
Operating transfc's in 
Ope-rating rransfers \)Ll! 

Total other financing 
sources {uses) 

Excess (defidency) of 
,evenues and Clher 
sources oveT expenditures 
and olher liSC", 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund bulances, endlllg 

$ 	 30,279 
69,407 
34,027 
31,648 
i 1,919 

228,280 

55,563 

198,537 
11,075 
22.233 

237.458 

(59.\78) 

84,l54 

84,154 

24,976 

61,620 

$ 86,596 

-nle accompanying notes arc an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
10 




TOW'N OF LEONVILLE, LOU1SlANA 

Reconcilmlion of the $t[uement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 


Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 


For Ihe Y"ar Ended June 30, 2020 


Total net changes in thnd ba!ances.at Jane JO, 2020 per Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes :n fund Balances I 24,976 

The Change in. net position replIn-cd for govemn'iellial activities in Ihe 
statement of activities is different bIXause: 

GovemmC11ta! flJf,ds report capital ()utlay~ as expcnclituIcs-, 
However, ill the sTatement of activities, the C{)Si of lhosc assets is 

all:x:aled over their estImated useful lIves and repmieo as depreciation 
expense. 

Capill1l outlay which is considered expenditures on Stal~menj of 
of Rev:;nues, Expe!iditure~ and Changes in Fund Balances 
Deprecimion expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 

$ 22.283 
(05.611) (73,330) 

Some ilems reported in the statement ofactivi!ieS do not require the use of 
<:urrent l1nancia! rewurce3 and, therefor;"!, arc not reported as expenditures 
i.n the governmental funds. 

CA)mpensated absenees .),974 

Net .;;ffeclofpension liability recognllioil (l,35t) 

Ner effect ofpens-ion liability allocluion 45,350 

Total changes. in nel pmition ;it June 30, 2020 per Statem",n( .of Adviltes 1,619 

The accompanyjng notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
11 
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TO'W'N or LEONV[LLE, LOUI$lA:-IA 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Receivables' 

;\(:tount$ receivable 
lllll'ilh;:d r~ceivable$ 

Restricted a.~ets 
Cash and cash v:pivaJenlS 

Prepaid insurance 
Utility property plant and eqwpment 
Acz:umu!ated depreciali{}11 
Due from others 

Total a.~se!s 

DEFERRJ:O OUTFLOWS OF RESOllRCES 
Deferred outflows relaled 10 pws.inns 

LlAB1LlT1ES 
Cunen! liabilities: 

Accoul1!s payablE 
Accl'IJeG liabtlifies 
Compensaced nbs.:nces 
Accrued interest payable 
Current pOl1ion of revenue bonds payable 
Current portion ornotes payab:e 

Total current liabilities 
Nonclll"Ten! liobil!lies: 

Payable from restricted assets, 

Customers' depo$lls 

Revenue bonds payable 

Kotes payable 

Net pension liability 


Total noncurrent liabiliries 

TotalllabilitlCS: 

DEFERRED INFLOWS Of RESOURCES 
D~ferred inflows related 10 pto$ions 

NET POSITIO'l 

Investment in general fixed assets, 


net of related deb, 

Re.:;tricted for debt servIce 

Unrestricted 


Total net position 

Propriet.ary Funds 
Jtme 30, 2020 

Gas Fuw:! 

$ 32,368 


4A50 
, ,309 

30,675 
3,680 

603,477 
(480,)85) 

!95,514 

3"180-

2,716 

35 
259 

3,010 

28,487 

11,532 
40,01-9 

43,029 

631 

123,092 

Wale; F',!-_I_~4 

S 359,667 

135,OSO 
56,241 

302,189 
32,748 

1O,197.3J2 
(2,826,80)) 

4 j lO2 
8.260,536 

,}~4,106 

lS,nJ 
21,758 
13,940 
2,135 

65,518 
!22,582 

4,723,996 
450llS9 

5,174,085 

5,296,667 

24,633 

2,SSO,985 
302,1 89 
130.168 

k 3,063.342 

Sewer ~\lOd 

$ 6,075 

8,837 
2,950 

8S,'U,i 
6,802 

6,156,804 
(2,328,O27) 

3,939.402 

12,186 

6.649 

894 
£,740 

27,017 

37,300 

861,924 

44,196 
906,120 

943A20 

2.4!9 

3,8-23,177 
&5.96 I 

Jotal!; 

$ 398,1 )0 

148,367 
60,501) 

4 !8,825 
43,230 

16/}S7,593 
(5,635,215) 

4,102 
12,395,512: 

1]9,472 

23,286 
2 ~ ,793 
15,093 
5,175 

27,0 l? 
65528 

162,lJ92 

28,487 
861,924 

4.723,996 
505,317 

6,120,224 

6,283,)16 

27,68) 

fdn,854 
38&,150 

(696,$ 19) 
$ 6,224,185 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
12 



TO'VVN Of LEONVILLE., LOU!SIANA 

PrOprielary Fund 


Statemel'lt efRevel'lues, ExpellSes., and Changes 

to Fund Net Pos;tion 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Opendng re\'CnHe~: 
Charges for services -

Ges sales 
Water sales 
Sewer service charges 
t'ellallies and late fees 

Mist.::Hil1Ieoutl revenues 
Total operating re\'enue~ 

1; 7.4,9ll) 

74,911 

$ 

1,487,118 

45,157 
25,23l 

1,557,566 

$ 

85,579 

1,227 
86,806 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of saies lIod servICes 
General and administra1ive 
Depreciation 

Tota! operating expenses 

22,161 
)3,369 
16,158 
71,788 

826,144 
200,652 

1,026,796 

122,966 
144,604 
267,570 

Operating income 3,123 __5~O,770 1180,764) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
interest income 
Interest expense 
NOllcmployer pen~ion contri{1Utlons 

Total n()JI~)peruting reyenlleS (expeu$es) 

140 

348 

48' 

L417 
(206,711) 

1),565 
('91,729) 

331 
(40,559) 

1,332 
(38,8%) 

income before contribmions: ant: transfers 3,611 33:9,041 (219,660) 

Operating l.:ontributi()J'ls and transfers: 
Capital comribulions 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers OUI 

r otal operating contributions and iransfers 

2,532 
3,432 

",_(3,603) 
2,361 

36,100 

p13,235) 
(176,535) 

92,259 
(8,357) 
83,9(J2 

Change in net: pusition 5,972 162,506 (135,758) 

Net position, beginning 149,112 '/,900,836 3,14l,507 

Ner position, endmg $ J55,094 $3,063,342 $: 3,005,749 

S 74,910 
IAS7,liB 

85,579 
45,157 
26,459 

1,719,283 

12,161 
982.479 
361-414 

',366, '54 

353,l29 

! ,g88 
(247,270) 

__-'5 
1
245 

(230, '37) 

P2,992 

39,232 
95,691 

(225,t95) 
(90,272) 

32,720 

6,19l,465 

$ 6,124, 185 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the ba'.lic financial statements, 
13 



TOWN OF LEONVI LLE, LOUISI ANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 


Proprielary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Gas Fund WjJler Fund S!twer Fund Tota l 
Cash fl ows fTom operating activ ities: 

Receipts from customers $ 82,843 $1,555,698 $ 90,048 $ 1,728,589 
Payments to suppliers (48,856) (337,60) (8),546) (470,005) 
Payments to employees (8,486) (449,08) (31 ,528) (489,097) 
Other rece ipts 1 25,?31 1,227 26,459 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 25,502 794 ,243 (23,799) 795,946 

Cash nows from noncapital fina ncing aClivilies: 
Cash received fro m other funds 3,432 92,259 95,69 1 
Nonemployer pension contributions )48 13,565 1,332 15,245 
Cash paid to other funds (3,60) (2 1 ),235) (8,)57] (225 , 195) 

Net cash provided (used) by Roncapital 
financing activities 171 (199,670) 85 ,234 (114,259) 

Cash flows from capital and related financ ing activiti es: 
Princ jpal paid on debl (62,883) (25,827) (88,7 10) 
Acquisition of debt 
Interest paid on debt (206,55) (40,6) 9) (247,192) 
(Tncrease) decrease in grant receivables 
Proceeds from meier deposits (Rei) 707 707 
Contributed capital 2,532 36,700 39,232 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (6,084) (87 ,746) (9) ,8) 0) 

Net cash provided (used) by cap ital and 
related financing activities (2,845) (320,482] (66,466] ()89,79)] 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Jnterest on investments 140 1,41 7 ) 3 1 1,888 

Net cash provided by in vesting activities 140 1,417 )) I 1,888 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equi va lel11s 22,974 275,508 (4,700) 293,782 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 40,069 386 ,3 48 96,736 523 , 153 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 63,043 $ 66 1,856 $ 92,036 $ 81 6,935 

The accompanying notes are an integral pa rt of the basic fmancial statements, 
14 



TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUIS[ANA 

Statement of Cash F[ows 


Proprietary Funds (continued) 

For the Year Ended. June 30, 2020 


Gas Fund Water Fund 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash used by 

operating activi ties: 
Operating income $ 3, [23 $ 530,770 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used 
by operating acti vities: 

Depreciation 16,158 200,652 
Changes in current assets and liabilities: 

(lncrease) decrease in accounts receivable 7,803 27,460 
([ncrease) decrease in unbil1ed receivables 130 (3,03 5) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance 85 ( 1,932) 
(Increase) decrease in due trom others ( 1,062) 
Increase (decrease) in accountS payable (2,360) ( 11 ,313) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabi lities (40) (6,629) 
Increase (decrease) in due to others (3,81 2) 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 259 4,399 
Increase (decrease) in net pension liabi! it)' 4,156 54,933 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi ti es $ 25.502 $ 794,243 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per statement 
of cash nows to the balance sheel: 

Cash lind cash equivalents, beginning of period ­
Cash - unrestricted $ 10 ,2 89 $ 98,770 
Cash - restricted 29,780 287,5 78 

TOlal cash and cash equiva lents 40,069 386,348 

Cash and cash equi valents. end of period ­
Cash - unrestricted 32,368 359,667 
Cash ­ resir jcled 30.675 302 ,1 89 

Total cash and cash equivalents 6],043 661,85 6 

Net increase (decrease) $ 22,974 $ 275,508 

Sewer Fund 

$ ( 180,764) 

144,604 

3,423 
16 

(980) 
1,030 

( 1,722) 

120 
10,474 

$ (23,799) 

17,729 
79,007 

96,736 

6,075 
85,96 .1 

92,036 

$ (4,700) 

$ 

$ 

I2!ill 

353, 129 

361,4 14 

38,686 
(2,889) 
(2,827) 

(32) 
(15.395) 

(6,669) 
(3,812) 
4,778 

69,563 

795.946 

$ 

$ 

126,788 
396,365 

523, 153 

39 8, II 0 
418,825 

816,935 

293,782 

The accompanying notes are an integra! part of the basic financial statements. 
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TO\\'N OF LEONViLLE, LOUlSIANA 
Notes to F:nancial Swtemenh 

Th" accounting and repOiting practices of the Town of Leonville confornl 10 gelierally a.;;c.epted 
account:ng principles of the United Slates of America as applicable 10 governmental unittL GAAP includes 
all relevant Governmenta! Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronQuncements. Such accounting and 
reporting procedures also confoml to the requirements of LouIsiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the 
industry audit guide, Audits ..QfState <l.mJ.Local GQvemmenta!JJnits, published by the American {nstitu!~ of 
Certified Public Accoul){<mts 

The following is a summary of ;:enain slg,nificrtnt aCCOUn1illg policies: 

The TO'>\f\ of Leonville was incorporated under the provisions of the L&wtawn Act. The 
Town operates under ;he Mayor-Board of AldermaJ1 fom. of government The Board consists of 
five elected members. The Mayor and Bna,d are compensated for their services al an amount 
legally set by the Board anfHtally. 

This re;ron includes all funds which are controlled by or dependent on the <own exeeutive­
and legislative branches (the Mayor and Board of Aldennan). Control by or dependence on the 
Town WiL<; delennined on the basis of uJlandal accoW'ltabili{)', budget adoplkm, taxing authority, 
autho-rtty to issue deb!, elechon or appoimrnent of governing, body, and other general oversight 
responsihility. nie IOWl1 has no cornponem units or fiduciary funds. 

GoYernrnEnt-Wlde Financial SUllements (GWFSj 

The stat¢ment of net position lind statement of activities display information aoou! the 
Town of Leonvilh;, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the n::porting 
entity. Tne stalements dislingUish between governmental and busm¢ss-type aCHvttics_ 
Governmental activilies generally arc financed through taxes, intergovemmcntal revenues, and 
other noncxchange revenues, BusiJ1Css·type activities arc financed in whole or in pan by fees 
charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a cornparison bern'ecn drrect expenses and program 
revenues :or the business-type activities of the Town a'1d for cach function of the Town's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses afe those d"4'\t are specifically associated with a program 
or function and, therefore, are clearly idcn!ifiab!e to a particular (unction, Program revenues 
include (a) fees, fmes, and <charges p<Hd by the reclpients of goods or services offered by the 
programs, and tb) requirements of a particular program. Revenues Ihai are not ciassifled as 
program reVentl,;!;:, including all taxes, arc presented a.s general revenues. 

Fund Fhtanda[ Statements 

The accounts of the Town of Leonvil:e are organized on the basis of funds cach of which 
is considered ;l separate accounting entity. Fund accounting is designed to demons!rale legal 
compliance and to aid financial managemect by segregating lransactioTIS relating to certain 
govemmenl functions or activities. Th<.: nperatimls of each fund are accounted for with a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabiliti~, fund equity, revenues, and 
-expEnditures, or expenses a'1 appropriafe, 
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TOVlN Of LEONViLLE. LOUISIANA 
NOles 10 Financial Statements (Corttinued) 

Govel11meot resources are alloealed 10 and acc\)umed for in individual funds based upon the 
purposes (Of \vhich spending activilies are cO:1trol1ed. The v<trious funds afC grouped in tJle 
financlal statements in Ihis report, into fom generic fund types and two broad fund calegories_ The 
emphasis Oil fune finandal statemenis is on major governmental and enferprise (unus, each 
displayed in a sepanlle column. A fund IS considered major if it is tbe primary GpeTaling fund of 
the Town or meets the following criteria: 

a. 	 TO(al asseB, liabilities, revenues, or expendiw(es!expenscs of tl-lil! individual 
governmental or enlcrprise fund ore at !~ZlS( to percent oflhe cot.esponding total for 
all fi.Jnds oftha! calegory or Iyp.::; and 

b 	 Total asselS, liabilitit'S, rexenues, or expendltures/expenses of the individual 
governmenlal or enterprise fUfld are at least:) percent ofl:he corresponding :ola! for 
all govenUTIe:llaJ and emerpris.e funds combined. 

n'e major funds oflhe Town are described below: 

Ge-nera! Fund 

The General Fund is lilt general operming fund (If the Town_ 1< is used to account for all 
finand,,[ resources except Ihose required to be accounted for in another fund_ 

Proprie\ary Fund 

Enterprise Fond 

The Enterprisc Fund is uscd 10 a{:co,mt for operotions (a) that arc financed and operated 
in a mallner sllnilar to private business enterpnscs - where lhe intent of Ihe govcmi.ng body is that 
the costs {expenses, including depreciation) ofpruviding goods or servic¢s to the genera! public 
on a continuing basis til be financed or recovered prtmarily through u~er <:harges; or (b) \vncre (be 
governing body has decided !he periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses Ulcurrcd, 
and/or Tlet income is appropriate for <:apilaJ mamtenance, public polk;y, management control, 
ac<:ountabjlity Of ether purposes. The Town of Lennville's enterprise fund is the 1.1Ii1ity fund. h 
acoounl'i for the provision ofwaler. gas, and sewer services 10 residents of ihe Town. 

Measurem"ent fo<;us is tern) used 10 des<:riix: "whi<:h" transactIOns are recorded within the 
various fmantial statemcnl$. Basis of accounting refers 10 "when" IriiosZlclioIlS arc recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus upplied_ 

Measurement Focus 

On tr.e governmem·wide statemeI!! of net posItion and the siatement of advitics, botl1 
govcl1Il1Icntal and business·type activities nre presented Hsing (he economic resources 
F.li!<lsurement focus os defil)ed in :item b. b~Jo\v_ 
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TOW»..- OF lEONV1LLE, lOUfS1ANA 
Noles to Financial Stalements {Continued) 

In the fund [nandal sliltements, the "cutrent financial :re$QlJ~es" measurement fows or 
1he "c<:or.omic resQu~eS" measurement focus is used 3S appropriate: 

a~ 	 All govemmemal flUIds 1llilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus_ 
Only cu:re-nt financial assels .and liahilities are generally incJuded 0I11helr halallce 
sheels. Their operaling Slatements present SOUT«:& and uses of available spendable 
(in!incia! resources during a given period~ These funds use- fund balance as their 
measure of avai lab!e spendable fiJ)<lllcial re-sources at the end of the period, 

h. 	 The proprietary fund utilizes <Ill "economic resources" measurement focus. The 
accounting ohjeclives of this measurement focus aft the detenninatinn of operating 
)JJcome, changes in nCI posltion (Of cost rccovery). I1nancial position. and cash 
flows. All assets and liabillties (whelher current or noncurrent) associated w!ln 
their activities are reponed_ Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis Df Accounting 

In the government·wide sla(ement of net position ;:md statement of activities, both 
governmental a!lo business-type aC1iviiies arc presenled using the accmaJ basis of accounting, 
Under ihe accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized wb.;:n earned and expenses are 
recorded when the liabihly is innHTed, Dr C<:ODOOllc asset ~sed, 

Revenues, expeme5, gains, I05ses, assets, and li:ibilities resulting from exchange .and exehange­
like transactions are recognned when the exchange lakes pI-ace, 

Governmental fund financial stmemen_ts are accounted for using the current financial 
reSDurees mcasuremem focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Their revenues are 
recognized when they become measurable and available as nct current assets. Ad valorem taxes 
are recogn(zcd as rewnue in the year in Wllich they are billefl Fees ufld non-tax revenues are 
recognized when received. Grants !Tom othe-; governments afe reeognired whe-n qualifying 
expenditures art; incurred. Available means collectible- within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay eurrent liabilities, usuaUy 60 days. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual arc property :axes, grant revenues und mterest 
revenue. 

When bOl;, restrictd and unrestr1c{ed resou,ces are available for use, it is <.he Town's 
policy 10 use rcs!ricled resources. first, then unrestricted resDurces as they are neoocd, 

Expenditures are generally teLo&ni~d under Ihe modified aCLrual ba;;is of accounting 
when lhe relaled fund liability is inLurred except thaI a<cumula(ed unpaid vacation and sick pay 
are not accrued and principal and interest on genera! long-teon debt an; recogni:u;d when due. 
Purchases of various operatmg supplies 4fe regarded as expenGiwre:. at the time purchased. 

The proprietary fund IS accGumed f,)r using the accrual basis of aecoUtlting, whereby 
revenucs are recogrllzcd when they arc came<!, and expenses afe recognized when iJ1CLlmxt 

RaJ debts are wril1en off when accounts became worthless. 

Transfers between f\wtls tlW( 4fe not expoctcd 10 be repaid are aecoknted for as other 
finllhcing SOUfces (uses). These Iransaetions aft; recorded when the tnmsfers OCC(lr. 
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TO\,VN OF LEONVilLE, LOUlSiANA 
Notes to Financial Statements (Comirll.1ed) 

Program f,,;venues 

Pro,yam revellues included in the Statement of Activilies are derived directly from lhe 
program iL~e!f or from parties outslde the Town's laxp2lyers or citi2..."'1lry, as a whole; program 
revenues rcdu;:-e the cost of the nllH;tion to be financed Irom The Town's genera! revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The Town reports an direct expenses by ftmction in the Statement of Activitie-s. Oirect 
expenses are ~hQse thal arc clearly idenlifiable with a n.mction. [ndirect experl,Ses of other 
functions are not allor:aled to Ihose ftmClions, but are reponed separately in Ihe Statement of 
Activities, Depr«:ialion expense is specifically idenlilled by functIOn and is included in the direct 
e"pense of each function. Interest on generallong-lcrm debt is cQn:;idenxl an indirect expense and 
is reported separately on the Sta:emcn{ of Activitics. 

Capital asSets, wh!e-li include property, plan I, and equipment, arc reported in the 
applicable govemmental or businesHype activities columns in Ihe government-wide financial 
stalemenlS. All capital assets arc stated at hislorical eost or estimated historical cost if "aua! 
historical cost is not avadabk Donaled capital assets Me statoo at the,tr estimated faw value on the 
dale don;m::d Estimated amounts arc lmmaleriai if( rdation ((1 tolal fixed aSSeis. The town 
maintains a threshold level of$)OO or more for capilahzing capila! as;;ets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repair;; that do n01 add 10 the value of the asset OT 

maleriaUy extend assets livcs are nOl c:rpitaliz.ed PrioT to July 1, 2001, governmental funds' 
infras1ructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have beel) valued at estimated historical 
cost 

Major outbys for capital assets and improvements nte .capitalized os proje{:ts o,e 
(:Oostmcteu. interest incurred during the cooslmetion phase of capital assets of busines:Hype 
activitles is induded as pari of the capitalilcc value nfthe asse1s constructed. 

IRprerialion of' all exhaustible o1pital assets is recorded (is an allocated expense in Ihe 
statement of aCHvities, with accumulated depreciation refJected in Ihe statement of net positioo. 
Depreciation is provided i)'Ii\.'f the assets' estimated useful lives using the straig,ht·line method of 
depr«:iz,tion. The range of estimated userulliws by type of assel is as follows; 

Buildings 40 years 
Equipme:l1 5 years 
Utility system and improvements 20-40 years 
lnfraslruclt!l~ 20 years 

The rOWjl foHows these procedures m eS\.;1blishing ihc budgetary dz,\.;1 reflected in these 
finimcizl stalcmcnS5: 

1, The ,'V1ayor prepares a proposed, detailed line item, budget and submits i! to tbe Board of 
Aldennen no inler {han )0 days prior to the beginning of ench fisc;}1 year. Revenues are budgeted 
by sourcc, Expendilures lite budgeted by depanmem and class, 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOU ISIANA 
Notes to Financ ial Statements (Continued) 

2. A summ ary of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified th at the proposed 
budget is availab le for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget 81 least ten days a fter publication of the 
call for the hearing. 

4. After th e holding of the public hearing and completion of all aCli on necessary to finalize 
lllld implement Ihe budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement o f the fi scal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Any budgetary revisions require the approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse al the e.nd of each fi scal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting princ iples of the Un ited States of America . Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended from time to time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended 
prior 10 the fisca l year and June 30, 2020. 

F. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting. under which purchase orders, contracts, and other 
commitments for the expcndirure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of Ihe 
applicable appropriation, is not employed by (he Town as an extension of formal budgetary 
integration in Ihe funds. 

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposit, interest - bearing demand, and time deposits. 
Cash equ ivalents include amounts in tim e depos its and those investments with origina l maturities 
of 90 days or less when purchased. Under state law, the municipnli ry may deposit funds in 
demand deposits, interest - bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized 
under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States. 

H. Interest-bearing Depos its 

Interest-bearing deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. 

l. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows , the .Enterprise Fund considers all high ly 
liquid inves£ments (including restricted assets) with a maturi ty of th.ree months or less when 
purchased to be cash equiva lents. 

J. Shan Term Interfund Receivables / Payables 

During Ihe course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due 
from other fund s or due to other funds on the balance sheet. ShorHerm interfu nd loans are 
classified as interfund receivables/payables. Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type act ivities are reponed in Ihe government-wide fin ancial 
statements as " interna l balances." 
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TOW}.; OF LF.:ONV!LLE, LQU{SLA:t\A 

Notes (0 Financial Statement:; (Coniill(led) 


Payments made fO vendors. for service;; that wil! benefit periods beyond June 30, 201Q, 
are· recorded as prepaid ilems. 

Vacation lind sick leave are recorded as expenditures of Ihe period in which 
paid. The vacation policy was amcnrlled by ordinance #1-20!9 Anllual vacation is g.rnmed on 
January P' of each y<:ar, ranging from <,ne to five weeks, aecording :0 a )lealS ofservice schedule. 
Any vacation hours, limited!o 40, that ate not used by December 31" o;lh-t year may be carried 
forward to the following year but must be taken by Febnmty l8a. or the hours 3re lost. Unused 
vacation is payable a: time of tem1ination of employment. Compensated absences payable has 
been accrued fo( the unused vacation as of June 30, 2020. 

Sitk !C3ve of 80 hours is granted on January Ii! of each y.ear to fun time employees. 
Although :;ick leave)s available for employees when needed, it docs nm vest nor is it payabJe at 
knninalion of employment- Therefore, no liability has been recorded in the financial statemenlS at 
June 3D, 2020. 

ReSltic!ed assels include cash and il'11e(o;!st-bearing dejXIsits of (he proprietary fund that 
are legally restricted as to their use. Th.:: restricted assets arc related to the revenue bond accounts 
3:1d utility mcteT de!'Qsits. At June 30, 2020, there was $4 ;8,825 reSlfic<:c.d for deo! service. 

The accoul'11lng treatment of long·tenn debt depends on whether me assets are used in 
gove111mcntaJ fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial slatemenK 

All long-Ienn debt 10 be repaid from governmental and business>type reSQlw:es 1S 
reported as liabililies in the govemmenHvlde statements, The l.oog4enn debt consis!S primanly 
oftne revenue bonds payabJe and utility me,er deposits payeble and Net Pel1sJOn Liability. 

Long-tern) debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial 
st<ltemetl1s:, The deb! proceeds are reported as olher financing sources and payment of prinCIpal 
and imerest reported as ex~nditutes. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, ate 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds 
payable are repMed ncr of the z.ppliCilble bond premium or discount. Bond issuance coolS arc 
r:!ported as deferred chllrges and arnOJ1iu:d over the term of the related debt. The accounting for 
proprietary fund long-term debt is the same in the fund statements as it is in the govemment,\vide 
slUlements. 

[0 the govemmen!-wide statemenls, equity is classifled as oet posicion and displayoo in 
three components: 
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TOVv'N OF LEONVILLE, LOUlS!ANA 
Noles to Financial Statemellfs (Continued) 

(,I, 	 In.yesled jn___£ilQital (lQQ£I:h..m:Lof rcli;ljed debt - Consists of capital assets mcludir:g 
:restricted (apilal welS, net of accumulated depreciatioJl and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any b:mos, mortgages, nOles, or other borrowing !hzt are attributable tQ the 
acquisition, consfrucliort, or improvement oflhose assets. 

b. 	 _R.~?trktef,tJ2~UQ?]JioO Consist of net position with constraints placed on the use either 
by 0) extemat gruups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
o!ner govcrnm.::nlS; or(2) law through cormkutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. 	 1).nre."ttl~:&;;!__lt~1 l?QsitiOrt - All olher net position HUtt do not me.:t Ihe definition of 
"re$tricted" or "invested in capital assels, net of related debt" 

!n the fund fmanc10! statements, gnvernment,11 funds report aggregate tt:llount for the 
dassificatiom of fund balances based on the COll$:raints imposed on the use of these resources, 
'l1Je nonspendable fund balance -classification includes amounts Iho! cannot be spent be-tause they 
are ehher (3) not in spendable form - prepaid ite-niS or ;nvemori.;s, or (bi legaUy or contractually 
required to be mamlained intact 

Tne spendable ponton of the fund balance comprises Ihe remainIng lour classificalions: 
restricted, committ<;!d, assigned, and unassigned, 

.R.tc?trict~4 iund balance, 1111S classification rellects Ihe constraints imposed on resources 
either (3) externally by crerlilOrs, granlOfS, eonlribulOfS, Of laws Of regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law Ihrough conslilulional proviSions or enabling. legislation, 

G.}Jf11miltcd fll.$),.dJj.l}Jance, These amounts can only be used for specific purposes purSUal11 
to con.stf'dims imposed by formal resolutions or or-dLnances of the town council --. Ihe government's 
highest level of decision making authority, TIlose committed amollhts cannot be used fOf any 
oilier purpo:ru unles$ the town council remuves the specified use laking the same type of action 
imposing In.; commitment 11us dassificatkm also mcludes contractual obligations to rite ~xtell! 
(hat existing resource-s in Ihe fund hue be';l\ specifically cummiued for use in slHisfying lbose 
conlrac(tlal requirements, 

~9 fund Qillqncc, This classification reflects the amounts l;of!Strained by (be 
town's "intent" to be used for specifie purposes, bu! are neither restricted nor oornmiltb:t The 
town (:ov.nCll and fown lm:mag.;r have ilie authority 10 assign amounts 10 be u:>£d for splXifh; 
purposes Assigned fund balances include aU remaining amuunts (excepr negative balnnces) that 
are reported in governmental funds, other Illnn the General Fund, that are flat classified m; 
nonspendable and are neitlwr restricted nor c-mnmiued. 

UnnSfillSned fund bAlance This fund tylance is the residual c1assifk:ation for the General 
fund. It i'i alw used to report negative fund balances in other governmental fund:;. 

'\\.'))£'n an expenditure- is incurred for purposes for wh:ch both restricted and unrestricted 
f'Und balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been spent (irst When an 
expendilUre is incurred for whiell -committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balancC-$ 3f,o available, 
the Town considers the amounts to have been spent finl out of committed funds, then assigned 
funds, and tlnally unassigned funds, as needed, unless Ihe TowI, has provided o(herwise in its 
commitml;'\! In assignmenl aC\:;Ofl:i. 

Operating (NoMperu!ing) Reveliues and Expenses 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes 10 Financial Statcmenl s (Continued) 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods andlor services . 11 also includes all revenue and 
expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definiTion are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

ExpenditureslExpenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both 
governmental alld business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, ex pendiTUres are classified as fo llows: 

Governm ental Funds - By Character: 
Proprietary Fund - By Operaling and Nonoperating 

In the fund fl.nancial stalements, governmental funds report expendirures of rUlancial resources. 
Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic;; resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

PerTll anent reallocmions o f resources between funds of the reporting entity are classifi ed 
as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, all interfund h'aDsfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated . 

Q. Capitalization Qf Interest Expen se 

It is the policy o f Ihe Town of Leonville to capitalize material amounts of imerest 
resu hing from borrowing in Ihe course of Ihe construclion of fi xed assets. At June 30, 2020 the 
amount of interest capitalized for construction of assets in the Utility Fund totaled $0. 

R. Al lowances for Doubtful ACCOllnTS 

All rece ivables that historitally experience uncollectible accoonts are shown net oC an 
a llowance for doubtfu l accoonts. The Town bases its allowance on prior experience and the 
amount trade rece ivables exceed meter deposits. 

S. Revenue Restrictions 

The Town has various reslrictions placed over c;;erlain revenue sources from stale or local 
requirements. The primary restricted revenue SOurces indude: 

Revenue Source Legal Restriction of Use 
Utility Fund Revenue Debt Service and Utility Operations 

T. Deferred Outnows of Resources and Deferred Innows of Resources 

In some instances, the GASB requires a government to delay recognition of decreases in 
net posilion as expenditures until a future peri od. In other instances, governments are requ ired to 
de lay recognition o f increases in net position as revenues until a future period. In these 
c;;i rcumslances, de ferred oUlflows o f resources and deferred i.nnows of resources result from the 
delayed recogn ition of expenditures or revenues, respec;;tively. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
:-Jotes 10 financial Statemen!s (Con;inued) 

FAS8 issued SFAS No 165, Subsequenl Events (ASe 855) establishe~ general standards 
for accouming for ahd disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before 
finanClal statements are issued or are available to be issued We have evaluated events subsequent 
10 the balance sheet through the dale the financial statements we,e available to be issued. 

The CdS)' and C<lsh equtvnlen!s of lne Town are subject to Ihe following risk" 

Cusfodial Credit Risk, Custodial credit risk, for dept/sus, is (he risk that, in the eVent of the failure of a 
depository financial instiro(iotl, the Tow!', wiU not be able to recover its deposils" Undo, stale law, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank bahmces) must be secured by federal depDsit insurance or (he pledge of 
securities owned by the nscal agent bank, TIle market value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all cimes equal or exceed the amount 011 deposit with tbe fiscal agent These 
securities are held i1l the name of jhe pledging fiscal agent bank i1l a holding or custodial bank that lS 

l'l1uttl!lHy acceptahle 10 ooth parries, Louisiana Revised Sw:iute 39: 1229 imposes. a statutory requirement on 
the ct!stodial bank to advertise and ~e!! the pledged securj(ies within )0 days of being notified. by the Town 
that the fiscal agent bank has faile-d to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, Louisiana Revised 
StatlJtt! 39: !224 Slates that securiTies held by e ,hied party shall be deemed 10 be held in the Town's name. 

At June 30. 2020, the Town has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling 5854)9!3 as 
fOlluws: 

Demand deposits $ 854,871 
Other 42 

Total $ 854,913 

Deposit balances (bank balances) at June 30. 2020, are secured as follows: 

Bank balances $ 865,201 
= 

Federal deposit insurance $ 250,000 
Pledged securities (Calegory 3) 608,42l 

Total 858,42l 

Exce.ssf(Shortage) $ (6,780) 

Pledged securities i11 Category 3 include uninsured Of unregistered Investments tor which the 
securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by irs trust department or agent, but not in the Town's name. 
Even though the pledged securities are considered Uflcolluferali7.<!d (Caleg<lty 3) Louisiana Revised Statue 
39;1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the cuslooial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities 
wiHl1n 10 days of bemj!: notified by the Town thaI the fiscal agen! has railed to pay deposited funds upon 
demand. 
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TO\\t;.I OF tEONVILLE, LOUISJA:.IA 

Notes 'iO Financial Statemems (Continued) 


Restricted Assets were applk'1ble 10 the following at June 30, 2020, 

Proprietary Fund: 
Gas Fund 

Meter Deposits 30,675 
Scv.'er fund 

Bond Reserve Fund 62,929 
Depreciation .and Contingency Fund 23,032 

Water Fund 
Contingency Fund 57,954 
Deb! Servke Reserve 16,745 
Sinking Fund 1543 
Oepreci,nioo Short Lived Assets 165,947 

Tola[ Restricled Assets I <1 J8,825 

Capilal asset activity fOf (he yC<'1r ended June }O, 2020 was as follows: 

Baill,l(l! Balance 
July 1,2019 A:.ldl1;O~S DddlOhii JU11t i010 

GO'1:rmnClllal 3:li'filies 

Cilpitall.lt!lCH "ct bei11g depreciated. 
l$d , S,!/11 , , , 3,912 

011\<;:1 ($Pllill1s;;elS: 

6mtdloys 194J,S3 IN,1l5J 

IllfTIbtnK:mre )!;!(lL\2"}1 16,150 V;I)6,36t 
EylHf'fI);:ll! 135,851 6~ IS3 142,004 

TOIOI; 1)29,847 22.183 2,152,130 
4"$> ;;ccII!Y(ulmed d.:prCC'ill,(m 

Buddiqy, 110,950 5,563 1365U 
j"fraS1HlrtUfl: 119,t19 tOH> J60551 

€I,fv.ipmcnl 11)411 ] " 115,4.14 
TlAa\ ilcqJmul~kd ,kpfc;;i3li(l1l 5J4,gS6 6!(l,4Y9 

Govcmmcnlal actIvities, cal)!(a) t%CIS, [let , l;~ 14_961 , m,330) $ , 1,74\,&31,, ­
BU'iIJk%-lype 3;;(i,')1it:s 

C";l!1al !\.i,e!1 n()! ::'~ing ccprec,m«l 

:2!!d $ 14,lWI $ $ $ 74,~60 

Co.'l$\'1I~liQIl ill pt(lgJe!l, 

Oth,,: capital lti31':1j;. 

Utility system mil p;kllSJOll, I,,Un,006 55,S&3 16,352,569 
Mudrill(ry Jnd eql"prncll1 

T""" 
./91.897----- ­16,8(,3,763 

Jll,267 
93,&)0 

5)0,164 
16,951,593 

leos 4(;C(,lllui:ud Gepftca\l\)« 

lIhh'1 ,y;h,l'i1 >l1\d ,:x!C1l1i,ms 4,n7,2f,3 JA3,t156 5J(,<)JI9 

N!lIc1\llltry MId «;lIiprrum! 446,5315 19358 4M)W6 
T mal acc..mulfIle4 dep,Zt>:w,)« ),115.:';01 361/1-14 5,ry):,115 

Umin~" !~pe ilC:I"rt;~\ (-lIp,lal ~'\"elS, IKI $ J 1,581),9(1.3 $ (261.534} $ , J!,m.,J18 
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TOWN Of LEONVILLE, LOUlSJANA 
'Kotes to FloMetal Statemenl5 (Cunlinud) 

Oepre<:iatioo expense was charged to govemmcntnlnctivities as f(,Hows: 

Genera! govt:mmenlal S 5563 
Police 9,317 
Streets so:m 

Totnl deprecia! ion expense $ 95,613 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Gas S 16,153 
\Valer 200,6')2 
Sewer 144,604 

Tota! deprecia<ioo expense $ 161,414 

(5) Ch:lJ'2"'S in Long-Term D~h! 

The foUowlng is a summary of debt transactions in the proprielllry fund of the Town ofLeonvi!lc., 
Louisiana f,)r the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Payable al Payable at 

Jul1: L 10iV Additions Retlremvm!$ .f\Hle 3(L lv:W 

RevenUe bonds payable S 914,768 $ S (25,827) $ 888,94 ) 
~otcs pll;able 4,8S2A07-- ­ (62,883) 4,78~U24 

$ 5,767,175 S S (88,710) $ 5,678,465 

Rcveou(' bonds payable a! June 30, 2020 is comprised of!he following individual issues; 

Sl, )04,000 Sewer Re,,'emle Bond Payable daled 01/0510); due in mOIHltly 
installmems of$5):) 12, 16, which indudcs irHf:reS{ at 45% per anJ)lltll, 
mal;l.lring on 0 J!Q5i4 [, secured by sewer reV2nlles $ 804,419 

$l16,OOQ Sewer R<oveDue Bond Payable dafed 01 ;0510 I : due in monthly 
installmerll$ 0($5263)4, which inc:lldes inleresl ar 4.5% per annum, 
momring on 0 !l0514t, secured by sewer revenues 84,522 

Tot31 RevemlC Bonds Payable 888,941 

Less Cam:m Portion 17,017 

Revenue Bonds Pnyable $ &61,924 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
l\otes to financial Statements (Continued) 

NOles paydble at June 30, 2020 15 comprised of the fo!lowmg mdividuii! issues. 

$4,839,000 Water Notes Payable dated 1 Ot16il4; due in monthly 
ins!aHments of $21,582, which includes imetes! at 4.375% per annum, 
malunng 011 IOfl6!54! se:turcd by a lien of first priori'iJ" and water revenues 4,55£,079 

$260,000 W3ttr NOles Payable dated !0116!14; due l, monthly 
insta!hncms 0($871, which includes initefest at 25% per annum, 
rcalUring on 10/]6154, secmed by a !ien0fnrs1 priol it)' and water revenues 237,445 

Total Notes Payable 4,7&9,524 

Less Current Portion ___05/528 

Notes Payable $ 4,723.996 

All principal {l;1d mteres( requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law, The Town is 
required to deposit monthly into each a Sewer Debt Reserve Fund and a Sewer Depreciation and 
Contingency Fund the amOUnlS of $277 and $277, ~"pec\ively, These monthly deposits shall conlinue 
until a wrn of $66,466 has been accumu!afed in the Sewer Debt Reserve Fund; thereafter, all payments are 
to be made into the Sew~t Dep~cdnlion and Contingency Fund, At June 30, 2020, the Town bas 
accum\dated $62,929 in the Sewer D<tli ReSErve Fund a1Kl $23,{)32 in the Sewer Depreciation and 
Contingency Fund. Distributions lotaling $40.000 were taken oul of ille Depreciation and Contingency 
Fund for eopiial expendirures, of whkh none Juring lite cur:enl {iscat year. 

The anmlill requirements \0 amortize all sewer debt outstanding as of JU[le 30, 2020 are as follows: 

YeaT Ending Prmdpill Interes! 
June 30, Total __~~l:.!.:tenlS Payments 

20:!l 66,466 21,017 39,449 
2022 66,466 28,258 )8,208 
2023 66,466 29,5% 36,9!0 
2024 66,466 30,914 35,552 
2025 66,466 32,334 34,132 

::2026"2030 3J.2,}28 )&5,364 j 46,964 
203 I"2035 332,328 232,037 tOO,29 I 
~036':W40 332,328 ~90,<l63 41,865 

2()4l )3,435 32,998 437 
f ,362,749 ggS,94I 473808 

The Town received !oans from Ihe USDA Rural Development for 54,lB9,OOO aod $260,000 for 
water system improvem('nts, The USDA Rura! Deve!opmen!s Letter of CondItions as amended January 3, 
20/3 required th(' Town to establish a Depreciation Reserve of Shan Lived Assets in the amoun1 of 
589,580 and addi1ional monthly deposit.s of $2,100 until the fund a.ccumljlate.~ a minimum balance of 
5277,670 tn addili.:m, the Town is required to deposlI monthly into each, a Water DebT Reserve Fund and 
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TQ\VN OF LEONV!LU~, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

3 Water Depreciation and Contlllgcncy fuad, the amOOnlS of SI,122ij5 and SI,122.65 respectively. 
"1onrhiy deposits shall conlinue '(!nlil the sum of $269,436 1$ atcuiHulmed tn LIte Water Debt Reserve Fund, 
{hereafter, aU paymenfs aTe to be d¢POSllcd iato :the Water Deprecia:km and Contingency Fund, /\t June 
30,2020, the Town has accurllvlaled $165,947 In the l)cpreciatior. Reserv¢ of Short Uved !l.s:'.ets Fund, 
$76,745 in t~e Water Debt Reserve Fund and $57,954ln the Water Depreciation and Contingency Fund. 
Distributions touting $7'1,220 were laken out of the Depreciali.on Reserve Cor Short Lived Assets Funci fOJ 
capit.11 expendifurcs, of which $39.525 was during ihe (:urrenl fiscal ye?lr, Oistributions totaling $23.619 
\,.,cre taken OUl of the Water Depreclillion and Contingency Fund for capJlal expenditures, of which none 
dur;ng. the current fisC<l1 year. 

The .annual requirements to amortize all water debt outstanding as of June 30, 2020 are as foHows: 

Year End'rg Pfifld;ml lmerCSl 
june 30, Tota! ___ ~~ymen!s 

202l 2&4,427 65.513 
2022 269,427 61(367 201.060 
2023 269,<1:27 71,3:J.O 198.097 
2024 269,427 74,423 195,004 
2025 269,427 77.651 191,776 

202&---2030 1,341.1J5 44J,873 905,262 
2031·20J5 1347,1]5 546.136 SOC,399 
2036.:1040 1.347.135 676.794 670.34 ! 
2041<:045 1,347,:3:­ inS,143 508,992 
2046"20$0 
2051·2055 

! 

L347,l35 
962,069 

9,044,g"lry ! 

1/J38,J59
S9o,no 

U~9J~4 I 

308,776 
71,749 

4,2)~J55 

lnteresr expense totaled $2-47,170 and i.s. included in bus.il1c~ lype ac~ivi:ie5. as a wnter and sewer 
department expense. lnterest expense incu:Ted :0 the water depa.-nnent totaled S206,71l and interest 
expense incumd in the sewer department totaled S40,559. Interest capitalized for1hc year ended June 30, 
2020 totaled $0, 

The accounts of (he Town include a liabl!itj for utility cllstomer deposits of 528,41$7. As of June 
30, 2020, the Town has a meter deposit accollnt with a balance of $30,675 specifically set aside for 
customer meter deposit" 

PJ:JI! DcscrigtiQns 

In addition to {he federal social secunty system, substantially iJll employees of 1he Town of 
Lconville are members of the following statewide retirement systems' Municipal Emp!o;e-es Retirement 
System of Louisiana" These systems are cosHharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plau\, 
administered by ",cpnrnte boards cflrustees, Article 1{1, SOClion 29 oCtne Louisiana ConstlMH)fl of )974 
assIgns the fw;hority to establish and amend ix'11eftt provisiOn>- to the slate legisla~tlre, The systems i5sue 
annual, publicly ·available onMciaJ repom (hat ;)lci(;cle financial slf!ternenls and required suppl..::mentary 
information for the ::ystems. The report for 'v'fERS may be "blained at www.rnersla.com flnd 
www.l.ampers.org, respe,tively. 

http:www.l.ampers.org
http:www.rnersla.com
http:capit.11
http:Depreciali.on
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TOWN Of LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

NOles to Financial Slmemen1$ (Continued) 


ihc Munictpal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (S1's1cn.) was miglna!!y established 
by Act :>56 of tbe: 1954 regular session of the Legis.lature of rhe Stale of Louli\iana to provide f,otlrement 
benents to employees of all iJ1l:orporated villages, towns, and cities within the stale, which did not have 
,helf o\\,n retirement system and which elec:ed 10 ':lecome :nembers offhe System. 

The System is administered by a Board of Trustees composed of eleven members, three of whom 
shall be at-live and contributhg: members of the System with at leasl ten years creclirob[e service.and who 
are elected to office In accordance with the Louisiana Election Code, three of whom shall be active and 
contributing members of the Syslt:m with at leas! len years creditable service and who Jre not elected 
officials. one or whom shall be president of the Louisiana Municipal Association who shall serve as an ex­
officio m¢mber during his tem,l.rc; one of whom shaH b€ the Chairman of the Senate ReUremenl Commlt(ee; 
and one of whom shall be the Chaim.an of the House Retirement Committee of the Legislature of 
LOUisiana; Ihe commissioner or administra1izll\ who shall be a nonvoting member; and the Stale Treasurer, 
\yho shall ix; a nonvoting me,.Tioet. 

[1:('- SySlem is the aorn il1istrator of a cost-sharing !f1cllipk-employer defined benefit pe::ls1on plan. 
The Sy"tem was established and provided for by R.S.ll ;1731 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS), 

Act #569 0f the year 1968 eSlabhshed by the LegiSlature of lhe State of Louisiana prQvldes an 
opl.tonat mel hod for municipalitieS to callce: Socia! Secunty 2nd wme under supplementary bCllehlS in the 
Munictpal Ef;lp;oyee1' Retirement Sys-Iem of Lomsiana, effective on and after June )0, J970. 

Effective Oc~obeT I, !978, u;lder Act #788, the "regular plan" and the "supplemental plan" WEft: 
replac<:d, and are now known as Plan "A" and Plan "IT'. Plan A combines the anginal pia:! ano the 
supplemental plan for those muftKipalities partidpating in both plans, while Plan B pal1ic;paks in only the 
original plan. 

Memix;rship is manoa10ry <IS a condition ofemployment beginning on the date e,mployed if the 
employee is on a pennancnt basis working at least thirty-five hours pcr week. Those individuals paid 
jointly by a participating employer <lnd the parisn arc 0.01 digibir for membership in the $},,;-..<:m with 
exceptions as ouili))ed in the Siahles, 

Any Person eligible for membersh ip whose first employment making him eligible for membership 
in thc Syslem occumd on or after January 1,2013 shall become Ii. member orme MERS PI-Ml A Tier2 or 
MERS Plm; B Tier 2 of the SY3tem as it condition of employment. 

Any member of Plan B who commenced partiCIpation in the System prior to Janoary J, 
20 J3 can relirc p!'oyiding they meet one of the following cri~eria: 

I" Any age w:!h thirty PO) years of creditable servke. 

;t Age 60 with a minimum often flO) or more years of creditable service, 

:1 Any age with (en <10) years. of creditable service eligible for di3aMity benefils, 

4, Survivor's bcneHts require five (5) years of creditable service at death of member. 
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TOWN O F LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Slatements (Continued) 


Generally, the monthly amount of Ihe retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall 
consisl of an amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average fina l compensation 
mulliplied by Il is years of credilable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly 
earnings during the highest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if service was imerrupted. 
However, under certain condi tions as out lined in the statutes, the benefits arc lim ited to spec ified 
amounts. 

Any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall be e ligible for re ti rement if they meet one of th e 
following requirements: 

I . 	 Age 67 wilh seven (7) years of creditable service. 
2. 	 Age 62 with len ( 10) years of creditable service. 
3. 	 Age 55 with thiny (30) years of creditable service. 
4. 	 Any age with twenty- five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military service 

and unused annual sick leavc. 

The mon thly amount of the reti rement allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 sha ll 
consist of an amount equal 10 two percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during 
the highest si: .. ty consecutive months, o( joined months if service was interrupted. However, under 
certain conditions as outl ined in the statutes, the benefits are lim ited to specified amounts. 

Final compensation is the employee's average sa lary over the 36 consetut ive or joined 
months Ihat produce the highest average for a member whose first employment made him or her 
eligible for membership in the system on or before June 30, 2006. Final compensation is the 
employee's average salalY over the 60 consecutive or joined mOOlhs that produce the highest average 
fo r II member whose first employment made him or her eligible fOr membership in the system after 
June 30, 2006. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service staled above, 
and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages spet ified above and receive 
the benefit acc rued 10 their date of termination . 

Deferred Ret irement OQt ions 

In lieu or terminating employment and accepting a service retiremeOl allowance, any 
member of MERS who is e ligible to retire may elect to panicipate in Ihe deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) for up to Ihree years and defer the receipt of benefits. A M.ERS member may 
participate i.ll DROP only once. During participation in the plan , em ployer contributions are payable 
but employee contributions cease . The montilly retirement benefits that would be payable, had Ihe 
person elected to cease employment, are credited to the MERS member's individual DROP account. 
Inlerest is earned when the member has compleled DROP panicipalion . Upon termination of 
employment prior to or at the end of the panicipation period, the member may receive a lump sum 
from the account, or a true annuity based on Ihe account balance. rf employment is not temlinated at 
the end of the lhree year DROP participation period, payments into the DROP account cease and the 
person resumes act ive contributin g membership in MERS. 

DisabiliJy Benefits 

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible co recire and receive a disabili ty belle fit ifhe or she 
has at least 10 years of creditabl e service, is not eligible for nonnal retirement and has been officially 
cert ified as disabled by the Stale Medical Disab ility Board . The monthly max imum retirement 
benefit under Plan B of MERS is Ihe lesser of an amount equal 10 two percent of member's final 
compensalioll mull iplied by years of service (not less than 30% of member's flJlal compensation) or 
an amount equal 10 what the member's normal retirement benefit wou ld be based on fina l 
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compensation at time of disabili ty, but assuming continuous service until member's earliest florma l 
ret irement age. 

Survivor's Benefit 

The surviving spouse (defmed as someone married to the deceased member for at least 12 
months immediately preceding the member's death) of a MERS Plan B member (nOt eligible for 
retirement at the time of death) will receive a survivor benefit, provided that the member had 5 or 
more year.; of creditable service. The survi ving spouse wi ll be paid either a monthly benelit equa l 10 

30% of member's final compensation. payable when surviving spouse attains the age of 60 or 
becomes disabled, or a monthly benefit equal to actuarial equivalent of the benefit described 
previously (not less than 15% of member's final compensation), payable upon the death of the 
member. A MERS Plan B member who is eligible for nonnal retirement al the time of death will be 
deemed to have ret ired and selected Opt ion 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving spouse upon the date 
of death. Benefits will begin only upon proper appiicalion and are pa id ill lieu of any oiller survivor 
benefits. 

Cost of Livin g Increases 

MERS is aUlhorized under stale law to grant an annual cost of li ving adjustment 10 members 
who have been relired for at least one year. The adjust mel'll cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original 
benefit and may only be granted if sufficie nt funds are available. The cost of living increase must be 
paid from invcstmenl income in excess of nanna! requirements . 

Contributions: 

The MERS employer contribution rates 3re established annually under La R.S 11 :10 1­
II : 104 by Ihe Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). taking inlo consideTalion 
(he recommendation of the system's acruary. For the year ending lune 30, 2020 the employer 
contribution rate for MERS Plan B was 14.0%. Employer contributions 10 MERS was $49,796, for 
Ihe year ended June 30, 2020. Employees participatj,ng in MERS are reqtdred to contribute 5.00%. 

Contribulions received by a pension plan from non-employer con tribUling entilies that are 
not in a special funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pens ion plan. MERS 
receives ad valorem taxes and stale revenue sharin g funds. The Town of Leonville recognizes 
revenue in an amount equal to its proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan 
from these non-employer contributing entities, During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town of 
Leonville recognized revenue as a result of support received from non-employer contributing entitles 
ofS t5,3 10 for its participation in MERS. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred OutOows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 

At June 30, 2020, Ihe Town of Leonville reported a liability for MERS of $508,00 I, for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liabi lity. The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 
30, 20 19, and tile total pens ion liabilities used to calcu late the net pension liability were detemlined by 
aCfUaria l valuations as of that date. The Town of Leonville's proportion of the lIet pension liability for 
the retirem ent system was based on a projection of the Town of Leonville's long·tenn share of 
contributions to the pension pl an relative to the projected contributions of a ll participating em ployers, 
actuarially detennined. At June 30, 2019, the Town of Leonvi lle's proportion for MERS was 
0.580696%. This reOects a decrease for MERS 0.036926% from its proportion measured as of June 
30,10 18. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town of Leonville recognized pension expense, for 
which there were no forfeitures, as fo ll ows: 

Pension Expense Net Pension l.iabili ty 
MERS $ 89,388 $ 508.001 

At June 30, 2019, the TOwn of Leonville reported deferred outflows of resources and 
defelTed infl ows of resources related to pensions from the follow ing sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience $ $ (22,53 1) 

Changes in assumptions 30,967 
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pens ion 
p lan investments 53,505 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contTibut ions 5,806 (5,272) 

Employer contribut ions subsequent 
to measurement date 49,796 
Tota l 140,074 $ (27,803) 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, emp loyer contributions to18Hng $49,796 were made 
subsequent to the measurement date for MERS. These contributions are reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and wi ll be recogn ized as a reduction of the net pension liability in Ille year ended June 30, 2020. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 10 
pensions will be recognized in pen sion expense as follows: 

Yca r Ended June 30: MERS 
2020 $ 23,35 5 

202 1 11 ,637 
2022 10,495 

2023 7,732 
TOlal $ 53,2 19 

Actuarial Assumotions 

The net pension liabili ty was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit 
payment$ to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is 
attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amoun! of the pension plan's fid uciary net 
position. The components or lhe net pens ion liability of MERS employers as of June 30, 2019 are as 
follo ws: 
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2018 20]9 
MGRS Plan 13 MER.'S Plan B 

Total Pension Liability $. 1,518,535 $ 1,516,425 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position (996,J3l) (l,008,424) 

Tolal Net Persian Liability S 522,404 $ 508,001 

Plan Fididary N<OI Postiol1 % ofrotal Pemi..,n Liability 

The Town of Leonville's allocation is 0.5&6969% of the Total Net Pension UntiHrl' for 11ERS, 

The lotal pension liabilities for MERS in Ihe June 30, 20]9 actuarial valuations were 
cletennined using ihe following a(;tu;lrial assumptions: 

MERS 
AGtuarlal Cost method Entry Age Nor:nal 

Expectoo remaining service lives 	 3 years: for Plan B 

lnvestment rate ofretum 

lnnation rate 	 2.50{)V/c 

Projected salary increases 
I to 4. years of service 7.40;;.0 
tnore than 4 years of Si)rvlCC ,L9D% 

Annuitant and PubG-201O(B) Healthy Retiree TabJe set equal to 

beneficiary mortality !20% for ma~es aod females, each adjusted using 
their respective male alld female MP2013 scales. 

Emp!oyee mortably 	 PuhG-20 1 O(B) Employee Table sel equal to 
l20% for males and female::., ~adi adjusted usinS 
their respectlVc male and female r.4P2f)l8 scales" 

Disabled hVi)s mortality 	 PubNS-2(!1 O(s) Disabled Relire<: Table set eqU!lJ 
to 1211"f, for males and females with the full 
generational MP201 S scale. 

The MERS actuarial assumptions used were based on the resuiJs ofan experience study for the 
pellod July 1 20091ill'otlgh Juoe 30, 2())4. 

The !ong-le-rm expected rat" of re!utn on pension plan investments was deren-nincd using a 
buildingwblock method in which best· estimates ranges of expected future fC-i>! fates of retum (expected 
return:;, nCI of pension pl;Jn investment expense and inflation) are devcklped for each major asset <.:lass. 
Thes-e ranges liTe combined to produce Ir.e long.-term expe<:ted rate of relum by weighting the expected 
future real rates of relllm !Jy the lsrg¢t asset allm:»!!!)!) percentage and by adding expected inilalion and aJl 

adjlGt11lenl for :he effe<:t of rebalancingidiversificl11ioJL The resulting expeelcd long-lcrm rate of return fur 
MERS is 7.000% for the yearended June 30, 2019. 

Best eslL'llates of arilhmetic real tales of returr. for ellch major asset cla."0 included ill the target 
asse1 allocation for MERS as. of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the fO!JOWlllg tab-lc: 
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Long-Tenn Expecled 
Asset Class Target Allocations Real Rate of Return 
Equity 50% 2,)5% 
Fi xed Income 35% 1.51% 
Alternatives 15% 0.64% 
Other 0% 0.00% 

TOlal 100% 4.30% 
InOation 2.70% 
Expected Nominal Return 7.00% 

Discount Rates 

TIle discounl rate used to measure tbe tota l pension liabi li ty fOJ MERS was 1.000%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
wi ll be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from parti ci pating empl oyers will be 
made at the actuarially detennined rales approved by PERSAC taking into consideration the 
recommendation of the acruruy. Based on those assumptions, the net position of MERS was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current p lan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determ ine the total pension liability. 

Sensit jviry of the Employer's Proporliollate Share of the Net Pension Liabili!), to Changes in the Discount 
Rates 

The fo llow ing table presenls Ihe ToW"ll of Leonvi lle's proportionate share of the net pension 
liabilit), using the discount rate o f 7.000010 for MERS, as well as what the Town's proport ionate share of the 
net pension liabi li ty would be if it were ca lculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower 
(6 .000% for MERS) or one percentage·point higher (8 .000% for MERS) than the ClUTent rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

MERS $ 617,034 $ 508,001 S 365,044 

Changes in Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liabi lity for the year ended June 30, 20 19 were recognized in the 
current reporting period except as follows : 

Differences between Expec1ed and Actual E:rperience: 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard lO economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of the 10lal pension liability were recognized as pension benefit using the 
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining 
service Jives o f all employees that 3re provided with pensions through the pension plan . The difference 
between expected and actua l ex perience resuhed in a deferred innows of resources as o f June 3D, 2019 ill 
Ihe amount of$22,53 1. 

Differences between Projected and AClua! IIlI'eslmenl Earnings: 
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The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments 
were recognized in pension expense using the strai glu· line amortization method over a closed five-year 
peri od . The difference between projected and actual investment earnin gs resulted in a deferred outflow of 
resources as of June 30, 2019 in the amount of$53,505. 

Changes in Proportion: 

Changes in th e emp loyer' s proportionate share of the collecti ve net pension liability and collective 
deferred outt1ows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measuremenl date were 
reco~ni zed in employer 's pension expense (benefit) using the srra igll.l-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal 10 the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees thai are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions Proportionate Share 

Differences becween contributions remined 10 the System and the employer' s proportionate share 
are recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the Sll"Dight-line amortization method over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service li ves of alt employees Ihat are provided with 
a pension through the pension plan . 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple·employer plan . Membership in the System is mandatory for any fu ll-time police officer employed 
by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement. empowered to make arrests, 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 
The System provides retirement benefit s for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments 
in the calculation of the total pension liability incrudes all benefits to be provided to current acti ve and 
inactive employees through the System in accordance with ben efit tenns and any additional lega l 
agreements to provide benefits that are In force at the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by lRS II :221111 :2233. 
The follo wing is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general infonnalion 
purposes only. Participnnts should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership Prior to January 1.2013 

A member is e ligible for regular retirement a Aer he has been a member of the System and has 25 
years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years 
creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible ror early retirement after he has been a member of 
the System for 20 years of creditable service at an y age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rales afC three and one-third percent or average fi nal compensation (average monthly 
earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was intelTUpled) per number 
of years of creditable service not to exceed 100"10 or linal salary . 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
survi ving spouses and minor children . Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range 
from fort y to sixty percent of Ihe member's average final compensation for the sorviving spouse. In 
addition, each child under age eighleen receives benefits equal 10 ten percent of the member' s average flll a] 
compen sation or $200.00 per month, whichever is greater. 
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Member eiigibill1Y for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits arc 
based Oil Ha7.arciOllS Duty and Non HlI7J'J'dous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a 
member is eligible for regular rCliremcpt after llC has been a member of the Sj's.tem and has 25 years of 
creditable service at any age Of bas 12 years. or creditable s.ervice at age 55. Under 1hz Non Hazardous Duty 
sui:> pian, a merr.ber is el;gible for regular reUremen! afler he has beCl1 a member of the System and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditabk service at age 55, or 10 years nf creditable 
servke at age 60. Cnder bOlh sub plans, a member is eligibl.: for early retirement after he has been a 
member of the System fot 2Q years of creditabk service at any age, with an actuariaHy reduced benefit 
from age 55, 

Under the Hazardous and NOrl Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benel1t rates are three percenl and 
fwe and a half percent, respocliveiy, of average final (:ompen5a!ion (average monthly earnings during fhe 
highest 60 COl1s{!cufive months or joined months if service was lnlemrp!ed) per number of years of 
creditable service no! !O exceed 100% of final salory 

UpOIl death of an active contribUling member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor childrert Cnder certain C0nditions o\!tlined in the statues, the benefits range 
from twenty~five to fif1y·five percent of the member's average fins] compensation for lhe surviving: spouse. 
b add ilion, each child under age eighleen receives le11 percem of Ilverage fina.l compensation or S200 per 
monih whichever)s grealer, If deceased member hod less than len years ofservlce, beneficiary will. recdve 
a refund of employee contributiDns only, 

The Board of Tnrstees is a.u:horized to provi_de a11nual cosf-of.Jiving adjUS.L!1cnlS computed on 
Ihe amount of Ihe current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, no! to exceed 3% 
in ar:y given year. The Board is .amlwrized to provide an additional 2%1 COLA, computed 011 the member's 
original benefi1, 10 all regular retirces, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or 
older on the CUi-off date which determines eligibilhy, 

No regul,lt retiree, sUr'o'i'>'or or beneficiary shall be eligible 10 receive a cost-of-living adjustment 
until benefits have been received at least onc full fiscal year and the pr:ymenl of such COLA, when 
aUlhorit~d, shall no! be cff(:ctive unlil {he lapse of al leas! one-halfof the fisca! year 

Me-mbers who elect e.ady retiremenl are not eEgible fot a co:>.1 of hvmg adjustment until they 
reach fl':lgular retiremellt age, 

A f!le-mber IS eligible to elect 10 enter the deferred retlremen1 opllon plan (DROP) when he is 
eligible for regular retirement based on the mem!;u;:rs' sub plan panicipa1ion. Upon filing the applh:ation for 
the pmgr\1.m, Ihe employee's active membership in the System is terminated. Al the entry date into the 
DROP, Ihe e:nployce and employer wn!ributions cense. The ammnH \{) be deposited into the DROP 
account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elened by the panitipant al date of 
appliclltion, The duration of par1icipanon in the DROP is (hirty·six months or less, If employment is 
lenninatcd after the thrce~year perIod, the pan.klpunr may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a 
true 3nnuity. If e/119loymcnI is nQllc:rm:nated, active comributing membership into the System shall resume 
and upon :a1er termination, he shall receive additional re!i:emenl benefit based on the additi{)OilI servke_ 
For Ihose eligible to enter DROP prior 10 January l, 2004, DROP az-counts shaH I'Jlm interest subSt1quent to 
tnt' hcrminallon of DROP participation !It a rate ofhnlfof one percet.tage poini below the pen:emage role of 
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return of Ihe System's investment pOrlfollo 3S cenifioo by the actuary on an llrH'UZ.! basis bot will never lose 
money, For ;hos<: eligible 10 enier DROP suhsequent to January 1,2004, an irre\'cc;lble election is made 10 
eam imerest based on tlie Sys1em's irseSlmenl portfolio !clum Of a mone), market investment reh;m. This 
cottld result in a negative e-amillgs rate being applied \0 the account 

If the member ejc<.:\s a money market pW(lstnHmt retum, the funds afe tmnsferred to ~ 
government money market accom,L 

In 1999, the State Legislature llmhorized ,he System to establish an !nitial Benefit Oplion 
program. Initial Benefit Option is available 10 me·mbcrs. who are eligible for regular retiremCf\t and have not 
panicipated in DROP. The Initi:;tI fienefi! Option prQgrJ.m provides both a one~time single sum p3)1ment of 
up 10 36 months of regula; monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monlhly retirement benefit for life. 
inkrest is compllted on the billa,ncc based on same criteria as DROP. 

hmding Policy - State staiute reqlli:"l:'s covered employees 10 contribute 10.0(} percent of their 
sa!ariesl0 the system. The Town is required to contribtlle 3~.25 percent of covered employees' salaries. As 
provided by Louisiana Revis!;'·.;! Statute ll:J03, thQ employer contributions <lrc detem1ined by !lcluarial 
viJlua1ion and are sllbje<:t 10 change ea<:h year based on Ihe resulls of :he !,valuauon tor !hi' prior fis(iJI year. 

The Town's contributions to the System for rhe year ended Jllne 30, 2020 \\"a$ 5124,! S4, equal 10 
the r(!quif~ corliribll\lO!]S for the year 

The System issues an annual publicly ayailable financial report that includes fmancia! 
statements and required supplenwfi!ary infonnation for Ihe Sy\tem ThaI report may be obtained by writing 
to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Syst.:m, 840! United Plaza 131\'<1, Ba10n ROllge, Lootsiana 
70309-70)7, or b; colling (225)929~74! I 

I'elJsioll Ligbillti~.~\'nskl;!l EK~.jlt!d Defi:;rre.d OOIJI9.ws of Resources ilnd Dt.O.f.~rred Inllyws of 
g.e~ourc~·l!~i!J5tf~ 

At lune 30, 2019, Ihe Town re]X'rted a liability oU2l1 ,457 for its proportion<ite shMe orthe net 
pension li~bjlity for the M?ERS plan. Th~ net pension liability was measured al"> of June 30, 2019 and the 
!o!al pension liability used to calculate the net peosion liability was ddennincd by an <ictuarial valuation as 
ofllla1 date. TIle Town's propo!1ion of the net pen'lion liability was based on a projection of the TO\vn's 
long-term share of contriblltlom 10 (he MPERS pension plan relative 10 the projected contribm.ions of all 
participating. employ·ers, 3c.luarially determined. At.JUfie 30, 2019, the Town's proportion WdS 0.02438.5%, 
w\Jich was:m increase 0(0,000232% from its proponifin me;1~tlred as ofJtlne 30, 2018. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020. the Town rec{lgnized pension expense 0(530.420, 

Non-empIQyer CQfitri!;mtions 

Tb: System also f¢ceivcs insurance pfemium taX monies as additional employer contributions. 
The fax is cOflsidcrcd slIppon from. a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the kgislarure each year 
based on an -ilt;:!\Jtl.rilll study. Non,emptoyer contributions are recognized a~ reVClfUc, The Town recognized 
$5.020 cfnon-emp!oyer contribution revenue. 

AI Jllne 30. 2illO, the TO\\!l repOrled deferred uU1i1ows of resources and drlerred inflows of 
resources related tv pensions from the following sources. 

37 

http:OOIJI9.ws


TOWN OF LEONV1LLE, LOmS1A::-JA 

Notes to Fin;mcial Statements (Continued) 


Deferred Omfiows Deferred ]nf!ows 
ofResour;;es of Resources 

Oiflcrences between expected 
ilnd actual experience $ 465 $ (6,813) 

Changes in assurr:ptjons 12,4lO 
:-.let differen;;e belween projected 

und actual earnings on pensioH 
plan investments 14,388 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proponionatc share of comrihulion$ 4,368 (10,149) 

Employer contributions subsequo;;nt 
10 rneasol"ement dale 24,154 
T{)tal s 55)85 

11te Town reported a Imal of $14,154 os deferred oolflow of resooeces related to pensioft 
contributions made subsequent to the rneasLrement period (If kne 30, 2019 whic.h will be retogn~zed as 0 
~eductlOJ\ In net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amoun:s reponed as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows or resources related to 
pensio(ts will be reco!lf!ized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense: as roHows: 

Year Ended June 30: 'vrrERS 
2020 S 10,ll9 
2021 (5,454) 
20'22 5,859 

1023 3,539 
Tota! $ 14,[33 

~ru::ii\LMethods (I}<I) Assumptions 

The nel penSIon !lability was measured as the portIOn of the present value of projected benefit 
payments 10 be provided through the pension p!an to current active and inactive em;>loyees thai is attributed 
to those employees> past periods of service, less the amount of lhe pension plan's fidoclary neI position. 

The c.omponents oftne net pension liability orthe TO\vn as of June 30, :;020 arc as follows: 

2019 2020 
T01al Pension Liability $ 726,32~ $ 763,847 
Plan Fiduciary NC! Position (522,134) (542,390) 

Total Collective ::-Jet Pension Uabihly $ 204.191 $ 22l,457 

Plan Fidki3f) Net Postion % orTotal Pensjoll LlObility 7J.88'% 71.13% 

The aCl\.!arilll assumptions used in the June 3il 20 19 valuation were based on the assumptions 
used 1JI Ihe June 30, 2019 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the results of an iv,::,uarial 
cxpenence study for the poriod Juty ;, 2009 - June 30, 2014. In. cases where benefit slrvcttne5 w.;:te 
changed after the study period, aSSUmpl!\'H1S were based 00 eStimates Dr f'lture c>;perience, 
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A summ ary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in detennining the total pension 
liability as of lune 30, 20 19 are as foll ows: 

Valuation Date 	 June 30, 2019 

Actuaria l cost method 	 Enrry Age Nonna l Cost 

Expected remaining 	 20 19 - 4 years 
service lives 	 2018 · 4 years 

2017·4 years 
20 16 · 4years 

Invesfment rale of relum 7. 125%, net of invesfment expense 

Inflation rate 2. 500% 

Salary increases, Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 
including inflat ion and merit 1-2 9. 75% 

3-23 4.75% 
Over 23 4.25% 

Monality 	 RP· 2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar 
Adjustment Sex Distinct Tab les projected to 
2029 by Scale AA (set back I year for females) 
for healthy annuitants and benefic iaries. 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table set back 5 years 
for ma les and set back 3 years for females for 
disabled annuitants. 

RP·2000 Employee Table sel back 4 years fo r 
males and 3 years for femoles for act ive members. 

Cost·of-Liv ing Adjustments 	 The present value of future retirement benefits is 
based on benefits currently being paid by the 
System and includes previously grallted 
cosl-o f-li ving increases. The presenl values do 
not include provisions fOT potential fu ture 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of 
Tnlstees. 

The monaliry ra te assumption used was sel based upon an experience study perfonned by the 
prior actuary on plan dala fOf the period July 1, 2009 throug h June 30, 20 14 and review of similar law 
enforcement monality. The data was <lssigned credibility weighting and combined with a s tandard table to 
produce current levels of mortality. Thi s mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the 
estim ated duration of the System' s liab ilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality Wefe 
compllrcd to those produced by using a set-back of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated 
thai !.he tables used would produce liabi li ty values approximating the appropriate generational mortali ty 
tables. 

The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included 
in the System's target il ilocation as of June 30, 2019 are swnmarized in the following table: 
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Long-Term Expected 
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate 

Asset Class I of Retum 
Equity 3.28% 
Fixed Income J3.50% 0.80% 
Alternative 18.00% 1. 06% 
Other 0% 0.00% 
Total s 100% 5.14% 

Innation 2.75% 
Expected Nominal Return 7.89% 

The di scount rate used to measure the tota l pension liabili ty was 7. I25%. The projection of cash 
flo ws used to determ ine the discount rate assumed that contribution s from plan members will be made al 
the current cont ribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined r.ues approvcd by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduc iary net position was projected to be 
avai lable to mak.e all projected future benefit payments of current plan members . There fore, the long-leon 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The follow ing presents the net pension liability of the participat ing employers calculated using 
the discount rate of 7. 125%, as well as what the employers' net pension liabili ty wou ld be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 6. 125% or one percentage point higher 
8. 125% than the current rate as of June 30, 20 19. 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
6.20% 7.20% 8.20% 

Net Pension Liabili ty $ 308,562 1: 221 ,457 $ 148,384 

Chan ge in Net Pension Liabilitv 

The changes in the net pension liability fo r the year ended June 30, 2019 were recognized in the 
current reporting period as pension expense except as roll ows: 

Differences between Expecled olld Actuul Experience: 

The dirrerences between expected and acrual experience with regard to economic or 
dem ographic factors in the measurement of the total pension liabili ty were recognized as pension expense 
using the straight-line amortization method over a c losed period equal 10 the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The 
difference between expected and aClUa l experience resu lted in deferred innows of resources as of June 30, 
201 9 in the amounl 0($6,8 13. 

Differences be/ween Projected and Actual Inves/men! Earnings. 

The difrerences between projectcd and actua l investment earn ings on pension plan investments 
were recognized in pension expense using the straig.ht-line amortization method over a closed fi ve-year 
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period. The difference between projected and actual i.n vestment earn ings resulted in a deferred inflow of 
resources as of June 30, 2019 in the amount of$O. 

Chal1ges ofAssumptions or Olher Inpuls: 

The changes of assumpt ions about fulU re econom ic or demographic facwrs were recognized in 
pension expense using Ihe straight. line amortizat ion method over a closed period equa l 10 the average of 
the ex pected remaining serv ice lives of all employees that are provided with pensions th rough the pension 
plan. The changes of assumptions or other inputs resul ted in de ferred outfl ows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources as of June 30, 20 19 in the amounts of: 

Deferred Deferred 
Out nows Innows 

20 16 $ 11 .549 $ ( 14) 
20 17 16,720 
20 18 13,344 
20 19 12,41 0 

Change in Proportioll. 

Changes in the employer's proponionalc shares of the collecti ve net pension liabili ty and 
collectiye deferred out nows of resources and deferred ill nows of resources s ince the prior measurement 
date were recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight· 1ine amort ization method 
over a c losed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service li ves of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contribution s - Proportionate Share 

Differences between contribUlions remil1ed 10 the System and the employer's propon ionale share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight line amoniz3tion method over 3 closed period 
equal to the average of the expected remain ing service lives of all employees that are provided with a 
pension through the pension plan. 

(8) Segment Information fo r the Enterprise Fund 

The Town of Leonville maintains three Enterprise funds which provide gas, water, and sewer 
serv ices. Segment infonnation for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as fo llows: 

Total 
Gas Water Sewer Enterprise 

Q~llanment D~llanment QeQanment Fund 
Operating revenues $ 74.911 $ 1,557.566 $ 86,806 $ 1,719,283 
Operating expenses 7J,788 1,026

1
796 267,570 

Operaling i.llcome $ 3,1 23 $ 530,770 $ (1 80.764) 
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(9) Compensation of TQwn Officials 

A detail o f compensation paid to the mayor and Board of Aldennan for the year ended June 30, 
2020, follows: 

Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor 
Keny Willingham 
Brandon C. Herpin 
Kirk Ste lly 
Bi lly Lanclos 

4,880 
2,080 
2,080 
2,080 
2,080 

(10) Federa lly Assisted Funds 

The Town participated in federall y assisted programs. 
with Government Aud iti.ng Standards. 

These programs are audited in accordance 

(11) Concentration of Risks 

Concentration of risks 
geographical area of the lown . 

with respect to the Town is subject 10 the conditions of the limited 

( 12) Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodia l credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the even! of a bank failure, tlte Town 's 
depos its may not be retumed, or Ihe Town will not be able \0 recover collateral secu riti es in the possession 
o f an outside party. The Town' s ban.k deposits are required by state law to be secured by the deposit of 
certain securit ies specified al RSMO 30 .210 with the Town or 1mslee insti tu tion . The value of the securities 
must amount to the total of the TowlI ' s cash not insured by th e Federal Depos it Insuran..:e Corporal ion . 

As of June 30, 2020, the Town's bank balances were under co llateralized with securities held by 
Ihe Town or by its agent in the Town 's name in the amount of$6,780. 

(1 3) Estimates 

The preparation of (malleial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management 10 make est imates and assumption s that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabili ties and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those eslunates. 

(14) Interfund Acti vities 

Transfers lo/from other fund s at June 30, 2020 , cons ist of the following: 

From the Water Fund to the General Fund for operations 
From the Water Fund 10 th~ Sewer Fund for operations 
From the Water Fund to the Gas Fund for operations 
From Ihe Gas Fund to the General Fund for op~nltions 

From the Sewer Fund to the General Fund for operations 

117,544 
92,259 

3,432 
3,603 
8,357 

Total 22 5,195 
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In general, transfers are used to (l) move revenues from Ihe fUlld that eolleels the money to the 
fund thaI expends Ihc money, (2) move receipts restricted Of earmarked fOr debt services from the fund;s 
collecting the receipts to lhe deb! service :1Jnd as deh! service p!lymenlS becnme due, and 0) use 
unrestricted r.ewnues collected in a fund to provide operating advances to other fllllds in accordance with 
budgetary aU'ClOrizalion$, 

The Government Accounting Standards Board (CASe) hllS issued the following Statements which 
will become effective in futures years as shown be!nw: 

Statement No, t7, "Leases" increases the usefulness of gO'rcmments' financial statements by 
requiting lecognit:on of ceruin [ease assm and liabilities for leases that previously Were classified as 
operating ieas"s and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions (If the contract. It establi,;he::. a single model for lease accoonting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are fi:1Mcings of the righ! to use an und"rlying assel Und..or this S<;8!<:menl, a lessee is 
required to recognil_e a lease liability and an intangible righHo-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a def,;rred inflow of resot::rces, tbereby enhancing the relevanco and 
consistency of infonmdOfl about govemmenls' leas.ing ae1iville;;. The requirements of (his Slatemenl are 
effective for reporting periods: beginning, al1er December [5,20)9, Earlier application is el;couraged. 
Managerneli1 has root yet dClerminoo the effect of Ihis Statement on ,he fioancial stalements. 

Smlemeni No. 88, "Certain Disci&.HW<tS Re!afed to Debl. mclur!mg Direct Borr(fWings aud Direct 
Placements" improves 111" information thaI is disclosed in notes 10 gover:Utlen.1 financial statements reialed 
to debt, including direcl borrowings and dire\:! placements. The Statement darlfies which liabilities 
gov;;:mmems would include 'Alher; disdosing information related to deot This Statement requires Iha! 
additional essential information rdaled to dd)i be disclosed in notes to finMdal statements, including 
unused lines of credit: assets pledged liS collateral for {he deb!; and terms spedl1ed mdebt agreements 
rdilled to significant events of default with finance~related consequences, and significant s\lbjeclive 
acceleration clauses. For nmes to linal\cia~ stalerncntS reJated to debl, this Statemer.t also requires that 
existing and .additional infonnation be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements ot' debt 
sepa,alely from other debL 11H;; requircmen!s of this Statement OJe effective for reponing periods 
beginning after JUlie 30, 201&. Managemefl1 has nO! yet deter;mined the eife\;t ofml$. StatemenT on the 
financial statements. 

The to\YTj received on-ix:Lalf payments fTOm (he State of Louisiana, in the amO\l11! of $12,000, in 
tbe form of police supplemental pay, 

The Town has evaluated ,nbscqwent events through Dece;nb,n 4, 2020, the date which the 
fimmciai statements were available to be issued. 
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Revel,ues: 

Licenses and pcmlifs 
Franchise fees 
Fines and for:eit£ 

btergovernrlcntal 
Mis<;:el!ane~)us 

Total revenues 


Expenditllres: 


Curren! 

General govcl1unl;1n! 


Public safety: 


Police 

Streets and drainage 


Capaaloutlay 


Total expenditures 


Excess (deficiency) of 
revenwes {jve; 

expelldimres 

Other financing sou,n:es (uszs): 

Operating lnmsfers in 

Operating, mmsfers out 
Total other financing 

sOlirce.s (\lses) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues and other 
30tm;cs over expelloJ!ures. 
ami other uscs 

Fund bahmct:s, beginning: 

Fund balances, ending 

TO'W1\I OF LEONVILLE, LOClS1ANA 

General Fund 


eudgetar:' Comparison Schedule 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Bud:;el 

Origin" 1 F:nal... 

S 	 28)00 $ 21U96 
69,090 67,353 
42,000 33,238 
49,460 61,224 

6.890 11,951 
1 95J,40 201,162 

55,195 51,339 

194,742 193,662 
12,650 J1 ,060 

13,544 
262,5&7 274,605 

(66,947} (12,443) 

7S,OOO 13,000 

78,000 78,000 

!! ,053 $,557 

6L620 6),620 

$ 	 72,673 S [77 

Variance­
[;uvQrabk 

Actual JU;Jra~rable) 

$ 30,279 S ! ,883 
69,407 2,054 
34,027 189 
82,648 21,424 

! 1 ,919 (32) 
228,280 26,118 

55,563 (4,224) 

198,537 125 
11,075 ( 15) 

22283 (S,?}9) 

287,458 (G,&531 

{59,l?8) 13,265 

84,154 6,)54 

84,154 .6,154 

24,976 )9.4<9 

61,620 

$ 86.596 $ 19,4 !9 

Sec Nows 10 Required Supph;;mentary Information. 
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Licenses and permits 

Franchise fees 

fines and forfeits 

1 r.tergovern menta!: 
State of Louisiana ­

Beer tax 

CasJno tax 

On behalf payments 

Grant revenue 
Total intergovernmental 

Miscellaneous 

TOIat revenues 

'fO\VN OF LEONVILlE, LOUISIANA 

General Fund 


Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Revenues 

Year ellded lul1e 30, 2020 


Budgef 
Original FioaJ 

$ 28,200 $ 28,396 

69,,90 67,353 

42,000 33,238 

1,,180 !,642 

31,130 21,487 
12,000 12,000 
5, ISO 26,095 

49.460 61,224 

__ 6,89Q 11,951 

$ 195,640 $ 2{)2)62 

Actual 

$ 30,279 

69,4{)7 

34,027 

1,790 
22,162 
12,000 
46,696 
Sl,04S 

11,9]9 

$ 228,280 

Variance 
Favorable 

{Unfavorable; 

$ L8S) 

2,054 

7&9 

14& 
675 

20,601 
21,424 

I 26,1 }g 

See Notes to Required Supplementary lnformatior.. 
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TOWN Of' LEONV ILLE. LOUISIANA 

General fun d 

Budgetary Compariwn Schedu le of Expendi tures 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance ­

BudS!!1 Favorable 

Original Final AClUal (UnCa vorable) 

General govemmenl: 

Salarks I 13, 130 , 18,045 , 18,045 I 
P8yroll taxes 1,110 1.526 1,341 lSI 
Reliremenl and emp loyee benefils 3,135 811 8J7 (6) 
Accoullting 2,600 2,429 3.2 19 (790) 
Advenising )00 
Doe and subsuiplions 350 446 446 
Ulilil ie.<; 2,400 2,489 2,44] 46 
Insurance 18,000 12,205 15,588 (3,) 8» 
Supplies 4.)50 2,972 2,421 551 

Telephone 3,120 3,302 3,590 (288) 
M.isce llaneous 6,700 7,094 7,633 (539) 

Total gellenl government 55,195 51,339 55,563 (4 ,224) 

Public safelY: 

Police departmenl ­

Sa lari~s 125,8 19 13 1,7 10 133,222 ( 1.512) 

Payroll taxes 6,023 6,410 6,469 (59) 
ReTirement and employee bcndils 25,500 27, 147 27,739 (592) 
AUlOffiobile ex~nse 14 ,600 13 ,656 12,015 1,64 1 

Supplies 1,&50 1,179 892 281 
Unifonns 500 1.328 780 548 
I nsuran~ 14,850 14,277 14, 11 0 167 

Miscellaneous 5,600 2,955 ],3 10 (l51) 
Tolal pol ice departme nt 194,742 198,662 198,537 125 

Sireets and drainage : 

Street rnaterials 2, I 00 181 60 (21 
Street lighting 10,5 00 [0,879 [ 1,015 (136) 

Mjoce llaneous 50 
Total slrttts and dra inage 12,650 11 .060 II ,On ( 15) 

Capilal outJay: 

Equipment & buildings 

Tola[ expcndinrrcs , 262,587 I 
13,544 

274,605 S 
22,283 

287,458 5 
(8,739) 

( 1 2, 8;3~ 

See NOles 10 Requi red Supplemel'ltary In fonnalio n . 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUJSIANA 
Schedule of EmpJoyer's Proportionate Share orNel Pens ion Liability 


Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Employer's 
Proponionale 
Share of the 

Employer Employer Net Pension 
Proportionate Proportiontl!e Liability Plan Fiduciary 
Share of the Share offoe Employer's (Asset) as a Nel Position 
Net Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of as a Percentage 

Fiscal Liability Liability Employee It's Covered of the Total 
Year ~AsseQ ~AsseQ Payroll Ern~lotee Pa~ro ll Pension Liabili~ 

MERS 2015 0.592369 $ 238,144 $ 490,736 48.52% 76.94% 
MERS 2016 0.6 19489 421,034 429,920 98.06% 68.71 % 
MERS 2017 0.584307 484 ,337 449,248 107.8 1% 63 .33% 
M£RS 20 18 0.605243 523,676 457,662 J 14.42% 63.490/0 
MERS 2019 0.617622 522,404 443,912 117.68% 65.60% 
MERS 2020 0.580696 508,00 I 355,690 142.82% 66.14% 

MPER$ 20 15 0.03866 $ 278, 11 5 $ 73,615 377.80010 15. 10% 
MPERS 20 16 0.02854) 223,605 10,990 3 15.98% 10.73% 
MPERS 2017 0.02534) 237,535 RO,350 295.63% 66.04% 
MP£R S 20 18 0.0269 15 234,979 71,278 329.67% 70.08% 
MPERS 2019 0,024153 204,191 76,399 267.27% 71.88% 
MPERS 2020 0.024385 221 ,457 74,3 19 297.98% 7 1.1 3% 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

This schedu le is intended 10 show infonnalion for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become 
available. 

See Notes to Required Supplemenlary I.nformalion. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOU IS IANA 

Schedule o f Employer's Pension ContribUlion 


Ye:Jr Ended June 30, 2020 


Contributions Contributions 
in Relation Employer's as a Percent 

Contractually to Contractual Contribution Covered ofCovered 
Fisca l Ro:quired Required Deficiency Employee Employee 
Year Contribution Contribution ~Excess) Payroll Pa2:!oll 

MERS 2015 $ <16 ,620 $ 
MERS 20 16 40,782 
MERS 20 17 49,417 
MERS 2018 60,646 
MERS 2019 62, 148 
MERS 2020 49,796 

MPERS 20 15 $ 23,8 16 $ 
MPERS 20 16 20,942 
MPERS 20 17 25 ,511 
MPERS 2018 21,918 
M.PERS 2019 24,639 
MPERS 2020 24, 154 

46,620 $ $ 490,736 9.50% 
40,782 429,290 9.50% 
49,41 1 449,248 11.00% 
60,646 451,662 13.25% 
62 ,148 443,91 2 14.00% 
49,796 355,690 J4.00% 

23.8 16 $ $ 73.6 15 3 1.s00/" 
20,942 70,990 29.50% 
25,511 80,350 31.75% 
21,91 8 71,278 30.75% 
24.639 76,399 32 .25% 
24, 154 14 ,3 19 J2 .500/" 

This schedule is intended 10 show information for 10 years . Additional years will be displayed as tney become 
ava ilable . 

See Notes 10 Required Supplementary Infonnmion. 
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TOWN OF LEONV ILLE, LOUISIANA 
Notes 10 Requi.red Supplementary Information 

Note I. Legal Compliance· Budgets 

A. 	 The Town fo llows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data renected in these financial 
statements: 

\.The Mayor prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Board of Alderm en no later than 30 
days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. R.evenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures are 
budgeted by depan ment and class. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified that the proposed budget is 
availabk for public inspection. At the same time, a pub lic hearing is called. 

:; . A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least tcn days after publication of the call for the 
hearing. 

4. Aft er the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessfll)' to finali ze and 
implement Ihe budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary (lmend mcnts involving the tra.ns fer of funds rrom one department, program or function to 
another or involving increases in expenditures resulling from revenues exceed ing amounts estlmated 
require the approva l of the Board of Aldennen . 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounti.ng principles 
of the United States of America. Budgeted amounts are as orig inally adopted or as amended lTom time 
10 time by the Board of A ldennen. The budget was amended prior to the fi sca l year and June 30, 2020. 

Note 2. Stewardship, Comoliance and Accountabi lity 

Excess of Expenditures Qver Appropriations. The following individual fund had actual revenues in 
excess o r appropriations ror the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Variance ­
Budget Favorable 

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

General Fund $ 195.640 $ 202. 162 $ 228:)80 $ 26.1 18 

Note 3. Pension Plan - Changes of Assumpt ions 

Changes of assumptions ahout ruture economic or demographic factors or o r other inputs were 
recognized in penS ion expense usi.ng the straight. line amonizalion method over a closed period equal 
to the average of the expected remaining service li ves of all emp loyees that are provided wilh 
pensions through the pension plan . There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 
30,2020. 
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TOWN OF LEONVI LLE, LOUiSIANA 
Enterprise Funds 

Schedule of Opera ling Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Gas Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Total 

Operali,ng expenses: 
Sal aries $ 9,881 $ 374 ,53 4 $ 31 ,080 $ 415 ,495 
Payroll taxes 742 28,659 2,362 3 1,763 
Reti rement and employee benefits 2,238 98,593 8,680 109.5 11 
Gas purchases 22,261 22,261 
Insurance 8,901 57,647 17,097 83,645 
Accounting and auditing 2,429 7,288 2,429 12 ,146 
Engineering fees 3,340 3,340 
Office supplies 20 4,233 152 4,405 
Computer expense 15,180 15. 180 
Repai rs and maintenance 2,265 102,705 25,244 130,214 
Auto expenses and travel 24,846 2,107 26,953 
Utilities 65 ,732 25 ,75 1 91,483 
Telephone 10 ,256 2,552 12,808 
Uni forms 7,434 7,434 
Misce ll aneous 6,893 25,697 5,5 12 38, 102 
Depreciation 16,158 200,652 144,604 361 ,4 14 

TOla l operaling expenses $ 71,788 $ 1,026,796 $ 26 7,570 $ 1,366,154 
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COMPLJAKCE, INTE~'1AL CONTROL 


AND 


OTHER INFORMATION 
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V1GE. TUJAGUE ~ NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTlFlED PU8UC ACCOU NTANTS 

151 N. ~ STREET 
P. 0 _80)( 1006 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 7OS~S 
SHIR LEY VlGE. JR . C.P.A. TELEPHONE: 
fRANK G, TUJAGUE. C_P,A, 337-.457-9324 
OOMINIOUE M. NOEL C.P.A. FAX: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPL[ANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITJNG 

STANDARDS 


The Honorable Nicholas Degueyter, Mayor, 
and Members of the Board of Alderman 
Town of Leonville, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmen! Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroi!er General of the United States, the financial sUttements of the governmental 
activ ities, the bus iness-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remai ning fund information of 
Town of Leon ville, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the re lated notes 10 the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Leonville, Louisiana 's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 4, 2020. 

Interna l Control over Financial Reporting 

In phlOning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered TOWTl of Leonville, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determ ine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financia l 
statements, bUI not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Leonville, 
Louisiana's in(emal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on (he effecti veness of Town of 
Leonv ille, Louisiana ' s interna l control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the desi gn or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, Or 
detect and correct., misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of defic iencies, in interna l conlrol such Ihat there is a reasonable possibility thai a malerial misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro l that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet importa nt enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of interna l concrol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of Ihis 
section and was not designed to identify all defic iencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant defic iencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
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deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items #2020-00 I thru #2020-004 , which we 
consider to be a significant deficiency . 

Co.mpliance and Other Matters 

As part. of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Leonville, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material mi sstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, cOnlracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the detennination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provis ions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
Ilot express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other 
matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items #2020-00 t thru #2020-004. 

Town of Leonville, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Town of Leonville, Louisiana 's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Town of Leonville, Louisiana' s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures appli ed in the audit o f the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose ofthis report is so/ely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in cons idering the entity 's intenlsl contro l and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~J,~;~::l~~a~,Vbil
Eunice, Louisiana 

December 4, 2020 
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TOw'l OF LEONVILLE, LOCISIANA 

Schedule of Fil)dings and Responses 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 


We havc audited the financial statements of Town of Leonville as of and for the year ended lline 30, 
2020, and have issued our report tbereon dated De<:<i"mber 4,2020. We conducted om audit in accordilfice 
with auditing: standards generally accepted in 1he United States of America and the standards applicabJe to 
financial audits contained in GovemmCllt AUditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
Unite{i States. Our audit of tht' financial statements as of June 30. 2020, resulted 10 an unmodified 
opinion. 

SEction t Summary of Auditor's Reports 

a, Replwt on Infernal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control 

Material Weaknesses Yes _X~_ No Significant Deficiencies No 

Compliance 

Compliance fv1aterial 10 Financial Statement~.. Yes ~ __ No 


b. Federal Awards 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

Condit:on: 

Criteria: 

The Town of Leonville did not have adequate segregation of D.lI1ctions wilh!n (he 
accounting system. 

SAS I09, Unders/(mding the Entity and {{s Environmenf and Assessing the RiSks 
ajMa/erial Misstatemenf, AU314.43 defines internal control as follows' 

"Internal Control is a process, affected by those charged wiih governance" 
management, and other perwnnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance 
about the achievement of objecti\'cs with regard to reliability of financial 
reporttng, eftectiveness and effiCiency of operations, and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations," 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) 
AT501.0J stales: 

"'An entity's infernal control OvCr financial r£pt>r1lng includes thos.: policies 
and procedures (hat penain to an entity's ability to record. process, summarize, 

, (lnd report financial data consistent with (he assCl1ions embodied in either annual 
financial Sl1ltemems or interim fillallClal statemenls, or both:' 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule offindings and Responses (continued) 


Year Ended June 3(1, 2010 


Cause: 	 The cause of the condition is the f{lct that the Town does not have a sut1icient 
number of staff performing administrative and t1nancial duties so !is to provide 
adequate segregation of accounting and financial duties, 

Effect 	 Failure 10 adequateJy segregate accounting and IInancwl functions increases the 
risk that errOrS andior irregularities including fraud andior det.'1lcations may oceur 
and not be prevented andior detected. 

Recommendation: 	 Due to the size of the operation and the cost~benefit of additional personnel, it 
may not he feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: 	 It IS not cost etTective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the 
accounting function. No corrective action is considered necessary. 

Condition: Bank account balances. at June ji), 2020 exceeded FDIC [nsurance and pledged 
securities from B I Bank by $6,780. 

Criteria: Under state Jaw, bank deposit balances must be $I;.~ured by federal deposit 
insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market 
value Df the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all time 
equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities arc 
held in the name of the pledging liscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank 
tnat is mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute 39: 1229 
irnposes a statutory requirement on the -custodial bank to advertise and sell the 
pJedged securities within 10 days of being notifies by the Town that the fiscal 
agent has failed 10 pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, LouIsiana Revised 
Statute :39:1224 states t.hat securities held by a third party shall be deemed 10 be 
held in the Town's name. 

Cause:: The Bank moniiors the account balances at the beginning of each month to 
determine when more security pledges are necessary. 

afrect: At June 30, 2020, the Town had interest beanng cash m bank in the amount of 
$&65,201 and the insurance and securIty pledges of $858,421, resulting in a 
shortage of pledges in the amount of$6,780. 

Recommendation: We recommend that jhe Tow-n monitor 1he security pledges. at the end of each 
month to ensure that they have adequate coverage" 

Response: t>4anagement understands jhis finding and agrees with the recommendation. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 


Yea r Ended Jun e 30, 2020 


#2020·00) Sa les Tax Reporting and Collection Gas Fund 

Condition: 	 Sales tax calculation for taxable sa les of Gas we re incorrectly calculated at a rate 
of 3% when th e rate should be 2% and sales tax reports were inCOITectl y 
prepared. 

Criteria : 	 Sa les taxes due to the State of Louisiana for the sale of gas for non-residential 
usage is taxed at a rate of 2% of sales. 

Ca use.: 	 Sa les tax rate was incorrectly be ing charged at a rate of 3% on sa les of gas for 
non-residentia l usage and sales Ia..'<. reports were incorrectly prepared . 

Effect: 	 Sa les taxes of $62 were over collected on sa les of non-resident ial gas sales for 
the year, however all of the sa les taxes co ll ected were remitted to the State of 
Louisiana. 

Recommendation: 	 Sales tax rates should be rev iew and checked to the staled rates charged by each 
laxing j urisdiction on a regular basis and sa les tax reports should be filed 
correctly on a monthly basis. 

Response: 	 Management agrees with and understands the finding and will implement 
procedures to ver ify tax rates and file the necessary reports correct ly. 

#2020· 004 - Sales Tax Collections - Water Fund Commerc ial Accounts 

Condition: 	 The Town has two commercia l trailer parks and three RV parks that were not 
charged sales tax es on water sa les. 

Criteria : 	 The State of Louisia na requires that commerc ial enterprises slich as Trailer Parks 
and RV Parks, where the enterprise is billed and pays for the wate r usage, are 
subject to sa les taxes on water purchases. 

Cause: 	 The Town classifi ed these accounts as sales of residential water. 

Effect: 	 Sales taxes were not charged o r remitted fo r these accounts. The calculated 
amount not co llected or remitted fo r the fi scal year ending June 30, 2020 
amounted to $ ),362 and the period of July 2020 through time of discovery 
amounted to $542. 

Recommendation: 	 We recomme nd that the correct classification be applied to th ese accounts and 
sales tues should be collected and remiUed to the State of Louisiana . Sales Tax 
Returns should be amended wi th remittance of the taxes due. 

Response: 	 Management agrees with and understands the finding and will implement the 
correct classificati on to these accounts with co ll ection and remi ttance of sa les 
tax. 
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TOw'N OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule ofFiodings and Responses (continued) 


Year Ended June 30, 2020 


Section TIL Summary of Other Audit Results 

I. 	 The audi1or's report e.xpresses an unmodified opinion of the financial statements of Town of 
Leonville, Louisiana. 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 

Slarus of Prior Audit Find ings 


Year Ended June 30, 2020 


#20 19-001 - Segregation of Accounting Functions 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect 

Recommendation: 


Response: 


Stalus: 


The Town of Leonville did no t have adequate segregatio n of functions within the 
account ing system. 

SAS 1 09, Understanding (he Enlity and its En vironment and Assessing [he Risks 
ofMaterial Miss/atement, AU3 14 .43 defines int ernal control as follows: 

" [ntema l Control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, 
man agement, and other personne l, designed to provide reasonable assurance 
about the achievement of objectives with regard to reli abi li ty of financial 
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and com pliance wi th 
applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) 
A T5 0 1.03 states: 

" An enlify'S interna l control over financia l reporti ng includes those policies 
and procedures that perta in to an ent iry' s abi lity to record, process, summarize, 
and report financial data consistent with the assertions embodied in either ann ual 
financia l statements or interim financia l statements, or both." 

The cause of the condition is the fact thaI the Town does not have a sufficien t 
number of sta ff performing administrative and financial duties so as to prov ide 
adequate segregati on of accounting and financial duties. 

Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financ ial functions increases the 
risk lhat errors aodlor irregularities including fraud a ndlo r defalcatio ns may occur 
and not be prevented andlor detected. 

Due to the size of the operation and the cost-bene fit of additi onal personnel, it 
may not be feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

It is not cost effective to achie ....e com plete segregation of duties within the 
accounting function . No corrective action is considered necessary. 

Thi s finding has been repeated . 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Mayor and Aldennan 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Na me O ffice and Tenn Compensation 

Nicholas Degueyler Mayor $ 4,880 
P.O. Box 442 December 3 1,20"22 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879 -7026 

Kerry Willingham Aldennan 2,080 

P.O . Box 162 December) 1, 2022 
Leonville, LA 70551 
3)7-879-2287 

Brandon C. Herpin Aldenllan 2,080 

P.O. Box 375 December 3 1, 2022 
Leon vi lle, LA 70551 
337-879-9507 

Kirk Ste ll y Alderman 2,080 

P.O. Box 573 December 3 1, 2022 
Leonville, LA 70551 
337-879-2497 

Ben.ila Kennerson Aldennan 2,080 

P.O. Box 354 December 3 1, 2022 
Leonville, LA 7055 1 
337·8 79· )23 6 

Billy Lanclos Alderman 2,080 
P.O. 60;< 3 13 December 3 1, 2022 
Leonville, LA 7055 1 
]]7-945 -0586 

$ 15 ,280 
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TOWN OF LEONVlLLE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule o f Rates and Accounts Receivable 


Year Ended June 30, 2020 


The aging of accounts receivable for the sewer system and water system as of June 30, 2020 is as fo llows: 

Amounts Recei vable 

(Gas) (Water) (Sewer) 
Days Amounts AmounlS Amounts 

Unbilled $ 1,3 09 $ 56,241 $ 2,950 

0-30 $ 4,164 S , 33,768 $ 8,2 15 
3 1-60 (58) 395 6) 
61 -90 146 2,71 9 230 

Over - 90 198 (1,802) 329 
$ 4,450 $ 135,080 $ 8,837 

Residential Users ­ 465 2,853 360 
Commercia l Users ­ II 10 
Small Business Users -	 104 

As of June 30, 2020, the sewer rates were as follows (rate on actual water usage): 

Residential 	 $ 10.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 1.50 per thousand or part thereof over 2,000 gallons and under 10,000 gallons 
$ 0.05 per thousand or part thereo f over 10 ,000 gallons 

Commerc ial 	$ 10.50 for the ftrst 2,000 gallons 
$ 1.50 per thousand or pan thereof over 2,000 gallons 

Low Pressure Grinder Pump Rates $9.50 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$1 .50 per thousand or part thereof over 2,000 gallons and under 10,000 

gallons 
SO.05 per thousand or part thereof over 10,000 gallons 

Customers with no water meters wi ll be billed using current rates based on 1,000 gallons 

Customers with more than one sewer service and only one waler meter shall be billed at the fOllowing rates for 
each sewer service: 

$ 10.50 for lhe first 2,000 gallons 
$ i.50 per lhousand or part thereof over 2,000 gallons and under 10,000 gallons 
$ 0.05 per thousand or part thereof over 10,000 gallons 

The water rates were 8S follows: 

Effective January 1,2020 to Current 

Residenti al 	 $26.60 for the first 2,000 gallons 
S 3.30 per thousand thereafter 

Sma ll Business 	 $26.60 for the lirsl 2,000 gallons 
$ 3.30 per thousand thereafter 

62 



TO\1fN OF LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Rates and Accounts Receivable 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Commercial 	 $79.63 for the first 25 ,000 gallolls 
S 3.30 per thousand or part thereof over 25,000 gallons 

Effe(tive December 1, 201 810 December 3 1, 2019 

Residential $25 .94 for the first 2,000 ga llolls 
.$ 3.25 per thousand thereafter 

Sma ll Business $25.94 for the first 2,000 gallons 
$ 3.25 per thousand thereaner 

Commercial .$78.3 8 for the firs! 25,000 gallons 
$ 3.25 per thousand or parI thereof over 25.000 gallons 
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Company 

LA Municipal Risk Management 

LWCC 

Risk Management Agency 

Lloyd:; of London 

Hartford Fire Insurl:\ncc Co. 

T(]\VN OF LEOWiLLE, LOUISiANA 
Schedule of Insurance 


Year Ended June 30, 202:0 


Po!j~ 

Genera! Liability 

Law Enforcement 
Errors and Omissions 
Auto 

Workers Compensation 

Po\igy Pefioii 
12119/19 

01/0 1/:;0 

-12119/20 

OJ/01/21 

Commercial Property 01114120 ~ 01114121 

AIJfO Physical Damage ]2/19119·12!l9!20 

Employee Theft {J2!25!20 ~ 02/25121 

Cover.;lgQ 
$ 500,000 

500,000 
500,000 
500,000 

Legal limits 

2,396,388 

114,420 

1,004,250 
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roWN OF LEONVl LotJfSlANA 
Schedule ofCompematioH, Benefils and O!ber Paym(:!)ts 


to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 

Yeer Ended June 30, 2020 


NicilOlas Degueyler, ".·1ayof 
Period: ] 2 Months 

S~jary $4,880 
Travel 201 
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TOWN OF LEONVILLE 
P. o. BOX 57 


LEONVILLE, LOUISIANA 70551·0057 
 , 
(337) 879·2601 , 

FAX (337) 879·7922
NICHOLAS OEGUEYTER COONCIL MEMBERS 

MAYQA KERRY WI LLINGHAM 
JOSEPH NOEL In BENITA KENNERSON 
CH:eF Of POUCE KIRK STELLY 


CHRISTINE TiDWELL 
 BRANDON HERPIN 
CLERK BILLY LANCLOS , , 

VIGE, TUJAGUE & NOEL, CPA'S 
P. O. BOX 1006 

EUNICE, LA 70535 


RE: Management Response 

The following is our response to your recommendation we received in the Town 's Audited Financial 
Statement as of June 30. 2020. 

2020-00 I Segregation of Accounting Functions 

We. are aware of and have evaluated this inadequacy and concluded that the related costs versuS 
benefits to be achieved do not justify the additiona l personnel it would require to establish an 
adequate segregation of duties. However, we will try to segregate duties as much as possible with 
the existing staff. 

2020-002 Insufficient Collateralizatioo of Deposits 

We are aware of and have evaluated this inadequacy and concluded that we will monitor the 
security pledges at the end of each month to ensure adequate coverage. 

2010-003 Sales Tax Reporting and Collection - Gas Fund 

We are aware of and have evaluated this inadequacy and concluded that we will implement 
procedures 10 verify tax rates and file th.e uecessary reports correctly. 

2020-004 Sales Tax Collections - Water Fund Commercial Accounts 

We are aware of and have evaluated this inadequacy and concluded that we will implement the 
correct classification to these accounts so the sales tax can be coHected and remitted to the State 
of Louisiana and correct prior reports to remit the taxes due to the State or Louisiana. 

Nicholas Degueyter. Mayor 

7his institution is an equal opportunity provider. ~ 


